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KAYA BEAUTY CLINIC - SOLE PROPRIETORSHIP L.L.C. 

MANAGER’S REPORT 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 
 
The Manager submits his report and financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023. 
I approve the financial statements and confirm that I am responsible for these, including selecting 
the accounting policies and making the judgments underlying them. I confirm that I have made 
available all relevant accounting records and information for their compilation. 
 
Results and dividends 
The loss for the year amounted to AED 17,000. The Manager does not recommend any dividends 
for the year ended 31 March 2023. 
 
Review of the business 
The Company’s licensed activity is treatment of dermatology.  
 
Legal and regulatory requirements 
The Company has complied with the applicable provisions of the UAE Federal Law No. (32) of 2021. 
The Company was initially registered as an establishment in March 2007 and on 6 March 2023, the 
legal form changed to a sole proprietorship limited liability company under the U.A.E. Federal Law 
No. (32) of 2021. 
 
Events since the end of the year 
There are no significant events since the end of the year. 
 
Shareholder and interest in share capital 
During the year, vide amendments to the memorandum of association dated 6 March 2023, the 
ownership of the establishment has been transferred from Mr. Khalifa Ali Ahmed Abdulla Alhosani 
to Kaya Middle East FZE. Accordingly, the shareholder at 31 March 2023 and its interest as at that 
date in the share capital was as follows: 
 

Name  At 31 March 2023 
No. of  
shares 

 
AED 

% 
holding 

Kaya Middle East FZE 150  150,000 100 
 150  150,000 100% 
 
Independent auditor 
PKF were appointed as independent auditor for the year ended 31 March 2023 and it is proposed 
that they be re-appointed for the year ending 31 March 2024. 
 

 

PIYUSH LOYA 
MANAGER       
16 May 2023 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  

To the Shareholder of KAYA BEAUTY CLINIC - SOLE PROPRIETORSHIP L.L.C. 
 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
 

Opinion  
We have audited the financial statements of KAYA BEAUTY CLINIC - SOLE PROPRIETORSHIP L.L.C. 
(the “Company”), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2023, and the 
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and 
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a 
summary of significant accounting policies.   
 
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial 
position of the Company as at 31 March 2023, and of its financial performance and its cash flows 
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs). 
 
Basis for Opinion  
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the 
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.  We are independent of the Company in 
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for 
Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to 
our audit of the financial statements in the United Arab Emirates (“UAE”), and we have fulfilled our 
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. 
 
Other Information 
Management is responsible for the other information. Other information comprises the Manager’s 
report as required by the UAE Federal Law No. (32) of 2021, which we obtained prior to the date of 
this auditor’s report. The other information does not include the financial statements and our 
auditor’s report thereon. 
 
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
 
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we 
obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we concluded that there is a material 
misstatement of the other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to 
report in this regard. 

continued… 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  
(continued) 
 
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair 
view in accordance with IFRSs, and for their compliance with the applicable provisions of the UAE 
Federal Decree Law No. (32) of 2021, and for such internal control as management determines is 
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  
 
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the 
Company or to cease operations or has no realistic alternative but to do so.  
 
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting 
process. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements  
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:  
 
 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, 
or the override of internal control. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. 

continued… 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  
(continued) 

 
 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by management.  

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required 
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements 
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the 
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or 
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions 
and events in a manner that gives a true and fair view.  

 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.   
 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
Further, as required by the UAE Federal Law No. (32) of 2021, we report that: 

i) we have obtained all the information we considered necessary for the purpose of our audit; 

ii) the financial statements have been prepared and comply, in all material respects, with the 
applicable provisions of the UAE Federal Law No. (32) of 2021;   

iii) the Company has maintained proper books of account; 

iv) the financial information included in the Manager’s report is consistent with the books of 
account of the Company;  

v) the Company has not purchased or invested in shares during the financial year ended 
31 March 2023; 

vi) note 6 to the financial statements reflects material related party transactions and balances, and 
the terms under which they were conducted;  

vii) the Company has not made any social contributions during the financial year ended 
31 March 2023; and 

continued… 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  
(continued) 

 
viii) based on the information that has been made available to us, nothing has come to our 

attention which causes us to believe that the Company has contravened during the financial 
year ended 31 March 2023 any of the applicable provisions of the U.A.E. Federal Decree-Law 
No. (32) of 2021 or of its Memorandum and Articles of Association which would materially 
affect its activities or its financial position as at 31 March 2023 and there are no penalties 
imposed on the Company. 

 

For PKF  
  
 
  
  
Saranga Lalwani  
Partner  
Registration no. 5468  
Dubai  
United Arab Emirates  
16 May 2023   
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KAYA BEAUTY CLINIC - SOLE PROPRIETORSHIP L.L.C. 
 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
AS AT 31 MARCH 2023 

 
 
 

 
 Notes 31.3.2023 
  AED 
   
ASSETS   
Current assets   
Due from a related party 6 150,000 
Total assets  150,000 
   
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES   
Equity    
Share capital 7 150,000 
Accumulated losses  (17,000) 
  133,000 
   
Current liabilities   
Accruals 8 17,000 
Total liabilities  17,000 
Total equity and liabilities  150,000 
 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements. 
The report of the independent auditor is set forth on pages 2 to 5. 
 
Approved and authorised for issue by the shareholder on 16 May 2023 and signed on its behalf 
by the manager, Mr. Piyush Loya. 
  
For KAYA BEAUTY CLINIC - SOLE PROPRIETORSHIP L.L.C. 
 

 
 
PIYUSH LOYA  
MANAGER 
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KAYA BEAUTY CLINIC - SOLE PROPRIETORSHIP L.L.C. 
 
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 

 
 
 

 
 Note 1.4.2022 

to 
31.3.2023 

  AED 
   
Revenue  -- 
   
General and administrative expenses 10 (17,000) 
   
LOSS FOR THE YEAR  (17,000) 
   
Other comprehensive income:   
   
Other comprehensive income for the year  -- 
   
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR  (17,000) 
 
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements. 
The report of the independent auditor is set forth on pages 2 to 5. 
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KAYA BEAUTY CLINIC - SOLE PROPRIETORSHIP L.L.C. 
 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 

 
 
 

  
 Share  

capital 
 Accumulated 

losses 
 Total 

(Note 12) 
 AED  AED  AED 
    
Issue of share capital 150,000 -- 150,000 
    
Total comprehensive income for the year -- (17,000) (17,000) 
    
Balance at 31 March 2023 150,000 (17,000) 133,000 

  
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements. 
The report of the independent auditor is set forth on pages 2 to 5. 
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KAYA BEAUTY CLINIC - SOLE PROPRIETORSHIP L.L.C. 
 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 

 
 
 

 
 1.4.2022 

to 
31.3.2023 

 AED 
  
Cash flows from operating activities  
Loss for the year (17,000) 

  Changes in:  
 Accruals 17,000 

Net cash from operating activities -- 
  
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents -- 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year -- 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year -- 

 
Non-cash financing activities include:  
Issue of share capital  150,000 
 
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements. 
The report of the independent auditor is set forth on pages 2 to 5.



KAYA BEAUTY CLINIC - SOLE PROPRIETORSHIP L.L.C. 
  

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 
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1. LEGAL STATUS AND BUSINESS ACTIVITY 
a) KAYA BEAUTY CLINIC - SOLE PROPRIETORSHIP L.L.C. (the “Company”) a limited liability 

company registered in Al Ain, United Arab Emirates, incorporated in accordance with the 
provision of Article 218 of the UAE Commercial Companies Law No. 8 of 1984 as amended 
(repealed by UAE Federal Law No. (2) of 2015 and further repealed by UAE Federal Law No. 
(32) of 2021). The registered office is P.O. Box 41756, Ahmed sultan Ahmed Al Salami-Building, 
Al Jimi area, Al Ain, U.A.E. The Company’s licensed activity is treatment of dermatology. 

  
b) The Company was initially registered as an Establishment with license no. CN 1136054 issued 

by the Department of Economic Development, Abu Dhabi on 7 March 2007 and on 6 March 
2023, the legal form changed from establishment to a sole proprietorship with limited liability 
under the U.A.E Federal Decree-Law No. 32 of 2021. The Company has been managed and 
controlled by the parent company and therefore the assets, liabilities and the results of 
operations of the Company’s business activities have been reported in the financial statements 
of the parent company. However, the management has decided to present standalone 
financial statements of the Company for the financial year commencing 1 April 2022 and 
accordingly no comparative information is presented in these financial statements (note 12).  

  
c) The Company also has the following branch registered in Al Ain, United Arab Emirates: 
 

Branch Name Date of incorporation License no. 
Kaya Beauty Clinic – Branch 1 19 September 2011 CN 1136054-1 

 

d) The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Kaya Middle East FZE (the “parent company”), a 
Free Zone Establishment with limited liability registered in United Arab Emirates. The ultimate 
parent company is Kaya Limited (the “ultimate parent company”), a company registered in 
India which is listed on Bombay Stock Exchange and National Stock Exchange. 

  
2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 
a) Statement of compliance 
 The financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting 

Standards issued or adopted by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and which 
are effective for accounting year beginning 1 April 2022, and the requirements of UAE Federal 
Law No. (32) of 2021. 

  
b) Basis of measurement 
 The financial statements are prepared using historical cost. 
  
 Historical cost is based on the fair value of the consideration given to acquire the asset or cash 

or cash equivalents expected to be paid to satisfy the liability. 
  
 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 

orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. 
  

 c) Going concern 
 The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis.  



KAYA BEAUTY CLINIC - SOLE PROPRIETORSHIP L.L.C. 
  

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 
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 When preparing the financial statements, management makes an assessment of the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Financial statements are prepared on a going 
concern basis unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.  

  
 d) Adoption of new International Financial Reporting Standards 

 Standards, amendments, improvements and interpretations effective for the current period 
 The following amendments, improvements and interpretations which became effective for 

current period, did not have any significant impact on the Company’s financial statements: 
  

  Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before intended use – Amendments to IAS 1 
  Reference to the Conceptual Framework – Amendments to IFRS 3 
  Onerous Contracts – Cost of Fulfilling a Contract Amendments to IAS 37 
  Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018–2020 
 - IFRS 9 Financial Instruments 
 - IFRS 16 Leases 
 - IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards 

 - IAS 41 Agriculture 
 

 New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective and not early adopted 
 The following amendments and improvements that are assessed by management as likely to 

have an impact on the financial statements, have been issued by the IASB prior to the date the 
financial statements were authorised for issue, but have not been applied in these financial 
statements as their effective dates of adoption are for future accounting periods. 

  
  Amendments to IAS 1 – Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current (1 January 

2023) 
 Disclosure of Accounting Policies – Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2 (1 

January 2023) 
  Definition of Accounting Estimates – Amendments to IAS 8 (1 January 2023) 
  

e) Functional and presentation currency 
 The financial statements are presented in U.A.E. Dirhams (“AED”), which is also the Company’s 

functional currency. 
  
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 The significant accounting policies adopted, and which have been consistently applied, are as 

follows: 
  

  a) Statutory reserve 
 In accordance with the U.A.E. Federal Law No. 32 of 2021 on Commercial Companies, the 

Company is required to establish a statutory reserve by appropriation of 5% (previous year 
10% as per UAE Federal Law No. (2) of 2015) of net profit until the reserve equals 50% of the 
share capital. The partners may resolve to discontinue such deduction when the reserve 
totals 50% of the paid-up share capital. The reserve is not available for distribution except as 
provided in the Federal Law. During the year, no transfer to statutory reserve has been made 
on account of loss incurred by the Company. 



KAYA BEAUTY CLINIC - SOLE PROPRIETORSHIP L.L.C. 
  

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 
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  b) Revenue recognition 
 The Company’s licensed activity is treatment of dermatology.  
  
 Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when the control of the goods or 

services is transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which 
the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. 

  
 The Company recognises revenue from contracts with customers based on a five-step model 

as set out in IFRS 15: 
  

 1. Identify the contracts with customers: A contract is defined as an agreement between two 
or more parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the criteria for 
every contract that must be met. 

 2. Identify the performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a 
promise in a contract with a customer to transfer a good or service to the customer. 

 3. Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to 
which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or 
services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties. 

 4. Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a 
contract that has more than one performance obligation, the Company will allocate the 
transaction price to each performance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount 
of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for satisfying 
each performance obligation. 

 5. Recognise revenue when (or as) the Company satisfies a performance obligation at a 
point in time or over time. 

 
 The Company satisfies a performance obligation and recognises revenue over time, if one of 

the following criteria is met: 
  
  The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the 

Company’s performance as the Company performs; or 
  The Company’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as 

the asset is created or enhanced; or 
  The Company’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the 

Company and the Company has an enforceable right to payment for performance 
completed to date. 

  
 The Company is required to assess each of its contracts with customers to determine whether 

performance obligations are satisfied over time or at a point in time in order to determine the 
appropriate method of recognising revenue.  

  
 For performance obligations where one of the above conditions are not met, revenue is 

recognised at the point in time at which performance obligation is satisfied. 



KAYA BEAUTY CLINIC - SOLE PROPRIETORSHIP L.L.C. 
  

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 
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c) Foreign currency transactions 
 Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into US Dollars at the rate of exchange ruling 

on the date of the transactions. 
  
 Monetary assets and liabilities expressed in foreign currencies are translated into US Dollars at 

the rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date. 
  

 Gains or losses resulting from foreign currency transactions are taken to the statement of 
profit or loss. 

 
d) Provisions 
 A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as 

a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to 
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

  
 The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle 

the present obligation at the reporting date taking into account the risks and uncertainties 
surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flow estimated to 
settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows. 

  
 When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be 

recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain 
that reimbursement will be received and the amount of receivable can be measured reliably. 

 

  e) Value added tax 
 As per the Federal Decree-Law No. (08) of 2017, Value Added Tax (VAT), needs to be charged at 

5% standard rate or 0% (as the case may be) on every taxable supply and deemed supply made 
by the taxable person. The Company does not have any output taxable supplies of goods or 
services. As VAT register is not mandatory in UAE for such an entity, the Company has opted 
not to register under VAT. 

  
  f) Current versus non-current classification 

 The Company presents assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position based on 
current/non-current classification. An asset is current when it is:  

  
  Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle. 

 Held primarily for the purpose of trading.  

 Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or;  

 Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability 
for at least twelve months after the reporting period.  

  

 All other assets are classified as non-current. 
  

 A liability is current when: 
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  It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle.  

 It is held primarily for the purpose of trading.  

 It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or; 

 There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve 
months after the reporting period. 

  
 All other liabilities are classified as non-current. 

 
  g) Financial instruments 
 Classification  
 On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortised cost; debt 

investment at fair value through other comprehensive income, equity investment at fair value 
through other comprehensive income; or fair value through profit or loss. 

  
 The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial assets’ 

contractual cash flow characteristics and the Company’s business model for managing them. 
  
 In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value 

through other comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are “solely 
payments of principal and interest” on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is 
performed at an instrumental level. 

 
 The Company’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its 

financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash 
flows will result from collecting contractual cashflows, selling the financial assets, or both. 

  
 Financial liabilities are classified as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or at 

amortised cost. The Company determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial 
recognition. 

  

 Recognition 
 Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when, and only when, the Company 

becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Regular purchases and sales 
of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Company commits to 
purchase or sell the asset. 

  

 Derecognition 
 Financial assets are de-recognised when, and only when,  

 The contractual rights to receive cash flows expire or  
 The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has 

assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a 
third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either  
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 (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,  
or  

(b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and 
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.  

 
 Financial liabilities are de-recognised when, and only when, they are extinguished i.e. when 

obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. 
  

 Measurement 
 A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component that 

is initially measured at the transaction price) is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item 
not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its 
acquisition. Transactions costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are 
expensed in profit or loss.   

  
 The following accounting policies apply to the subsequent measurement of financial assets 

and liabilities. 
  
 Financial assets 

 Financial assets at amortised cost 
 Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised 

cost less impairment loss and deferred income, if any (except for those assets that are 
designated as at fair value through other comprehensive income on initial recognition) using 
the effective interest method. 

  
 1. the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to 

collect contractual cash flows; and  
 2. the contractual terms of the instrument give rise to cash flows on specified dates that are 

solely payments of principal and profit on the principal amount outstanding. 
  
 All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value. 
  
 Foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or 

loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss. 
  
 The financial assets at amortised cost comprise of due from a related party. 
  
 Financial liabilities 
 All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 

method or at fair value through profit or loss. 
  
 Financial liabilities at amortised cost 
 Financial liabilities at amortised cost comprise of accruals. 
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 Impairment of financial assets 
 The Company recognises an allowance for expected credit losses for all debt instruments not 

held at fair value through profit or loss. Expected credit losses are based on the difference 
between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows 
that the Company expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective 
interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or 
other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms. 

  
 Loss allowances are measured on either of the following basis: 
  
  12-month expected credit losses: expected credit losses that result from possible default 

events within 12 months after the reporting date; and  

 Lifetime expected credit losses: expected credit losses that result from all possible default 
events over the expected life of a financial instrument. 

  

 The Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit 
losses, except for the following which are measured as 12-month expected credit losses: 

  
 - Due from a related party for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the 

expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial 
recognition. 

  
 When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since 

initial recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers 
reasonable and supportive information that is relevant and available without undue cost or 
effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the 
Company’s historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward 
looking information. 

  
 The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is 

more than 30 days past due. 
  
 The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when: 
  
  The borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without 

recourse by the Company to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or 
 The financial asset is more than 365 days past due. 

  
 The maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum 

contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk. 
  
 At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised 

cost are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that 
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have 
occurred. 
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 Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross 
carrying amount of the asset.  

 
 Offsetting 
 Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of 

financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts 
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability 
simultaneously. 

  
 Equity 
 Share capital is recorded at the value of proceeds received towards interest in share capital of 

the Company. 
  
h) Fair value measurement 
 The Company discloses the fair value of financial instruments measured at amortised cost.  
  
 The fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in 

an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value 
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the 
liability takes place either: 

  

  In the principal market for the asset or liability; or 
 In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. 

  
 The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using assumptions that the market 

participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that the market participants 
act in their best economic interests. 

  
4 SIGNIFICANT JUDGMENTS EMPLOYED IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 The significant judgments made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant 

effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements are as follows: 

  
 Classification of financial assets 
 The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s 

contractual cash flow characteristics and the Company’s business model for managing them. 
  
 Impairment 
 The Company applies expected credit loss model to measure loss allowance in case of financial 

assets on the basis of 12-month expected credit losses or lifetime expected credit losses 
depending on credit risk characteristics and how changes in economic factors affect expected 
credit losses, which are determined on a probability-weighted basis. 
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5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY  
 Key assumptions made concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty 

at the reporting date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the 
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are as follows: 

  
 Impairment of financial assets 
 The loss allowance for financial assets are based on assumptions about the risk of default and 

expected loss rates. The management uses judgement in making these assumptions and 
selecting the inputs to the impairment calculations based on the past history, existing market 
conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period. Details of 
the key assumptions and inputs used are disclosed in note 3(g). 

  
6. RELATED PARTIES  
 The Company enters into transactions with entities that fall within the definition of a related 

party as contained in International Accounting Standard 24. The management considers such 
transactions to be in the normal course of business and at prices determined by the 
management. 

  

 Related parties comprise shareholder, companies under common ownership and/or common 
management control and key management personnel. 

  
 At the reporting date, significant balance with the shareholder was as follows. 
 

   31.3.2023 
   AED 
 Due from a related party(a)  150,000 
 Accruals  17,000 

 

(a) Represents due from shareholder against the share capital of the Company. 
  
 Balance is unsecured and is expected to be settled in cash. Repayment and other terms are set 

out in note 11. 
  
 There are no significant transactions with related parties during the year 
   
 Certain staff and administrative related services are availed from a related party free of cost. 
   
  31.3.2023 
  AED 
7. SHARE CAPITAL  
 Issued and paid up:  
 150 shares of AED 1,000 each  150,000 
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 During the year, vide amendment to the memorandum of association dated 6 March 2023, the 
ownership of the establishment has been transferred from Mr. Khalifa Ali Ahmed Abdulla 
Alhosani to Kaya Middle East FZE. Accordingly, the shareholder at 31 March 2023 and its 
interest as at that date in the share capital was as follows: 

 
Name  At 31 March 2023 

No. of  
shares 

 
AED 

 % 
holding 

Kaya Middle East FZE 150  150,000  100 
 150  150,000  100% 

 
  31.3.2023 
  AED 
8. ACCRUALS  
 Accruals 17,000 
 
 The entire accruals are due for payment within one year from the reporting date. 

    
9. MANAGEMENT OF CAPITAL   
 The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to ensure that the Company continues as 

a going concern and to provide the shareholder with a rate of return on its investment 
commensurate with the level of risk assumed. 

  
 Capital comprises equity funds as presented in the statement of financial position. Debt 

comprises total amounts owed by the Company net of cash and cash equivalents. 
  
 The Company is subject to externally imposed capital requirements as per provisions of Article 

308 of the UAE Federal Law No. (32) of 2021. The Company has complied with all the capital 
requirements to which it is subject. 

    
 Funds generated from internal accruals together with funds received from a related party are 

retained in the business, according to the business requirements and maintain capital at 
desired levels. 

  1.4.2022 
 to 

31.3.2023 
  AED 
10. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES  
 Other expenses 17,000 
   
11. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT 
 Financial instruments 
 Classification and fair values 
 The net carrying amounts as at the reporting date of financial assets and financial liabilities are 

as follows: 
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At amortised 

cost 
  31.3.2023 
  AED 

 Financial assets  
 Due from a related party 150,000 

   
 Financial liabilities  
 Accruals 17,000 
 
 Fair vale measurement and disclosures 
 The management assesses the fair values of all its financial assets and financial liabilities at 

each reporting date. 
  

 The fair values of due from a related party and accruals approximate their carrying amounts 
largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments. 

  
 Financial risk management 
 Risk management objectives 
 Risk is inherent in the Company’s activities but is managed through a process of ongoing 

identification, measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. This 
process of risk management is critical to the Company’s continuing profitability. The Company’s 
risk management focusses on actively securing short to medium term cash flows by minimising 
the exposure to financial markets. 

  
 The primary risks to which the business is exposed which are unchanged from the previous year 

comprise credit risks, liquidity risks and market risks (including currency risks and cash flow 
interest rate risks and fair value interest rate risks). 

  
 The management of the Company reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks 

which are summarised below: 
  
 

 Credit risk 
 Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation 

and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. 
  
 Credit risk is managed by assessing the creditworthiness of potential customers and the 

potential for exposure to the market in which they operate, combined with regular monitoring 
and follow-up. 

  
 Financial assets that potentially expose the Company to concentrations of credit risk comprise 

principally due from a related party. 
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 The management assesses the credit risk arising from due from a related party taking into 
account their financial position, past experience and other factors. Based on the assessment 
individual risk limits are determined. 

  
 Based on the assessment, the management believes that no impairment provision is required 

under IFRS 9. 
  
 Liquidity risk 
 Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may encounter difficulty in meeting financial 

obligations due to shortage of funds. The Company's exposure to liquidity risk arises primarily 
from mismatches of the maturities of financial assets and financial liabilities. 

  

 The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will 
always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed 
conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company's   
reputation. The Company manages liquidity risk by monitoring forecast and actual cash flows 
and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. The Concern limits its 
liquidity risk by ensuring adequate arrangements with its related parties. 

  
 The table below summarises the maturities of the Company’s undiscounted financial liabilities 

at the reporting date, based on contractual payment dates and current market interest rates. 
   
  Less than one 

year 
  31.3.2023 
  AED 
 Accruals 17,000 
  
 Market risk 
 Market risk is the risk that the changes in market prices, such as foreign currency exchange 

rates, interest rates and prices, will affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of 
financial instrument. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control 
market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the returns. 

  
 Currency risk 
 Currency risk is the risk that the values of financial instruments will fluctuate because of 

changes in foreign exchange rates. 
  
 There are no significant currency risks as substantially all financial assets and financial liabilities 

are denominated in U.A.E. Dirhams or US Dollars to which the Dirham is fixed. 
  
 Interest rate risk 
 Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate because of 

changes in market interest rates. 
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 The Company is not exposed to any significant interest rate risks. 
  
12. COMPARATIVE INFORMATION 

 These are the first set of financial statements prepared by the management for the Company 
[Note 1(b)] and, accordingly, no comparative information is presented. 

  
13. CORPORATE TAX 
 On 9 December 2022, the UAE Ministry of Finance issued the Federal Decree-Law No. (47) of 

2022 introducing Corporate Tax, effective for financial years commencing on or after 1 June 
2023. The rate of corporate tax is 9% on the taxable income exceeding AED 375,000 and 0% for 
qualifying free zone companies on their qualifying income, subject to meeting specified 
conditions. There is no impact of this law on the financial statements of the Company for the 
year ended 31 March 2023.  Management will assess the implications of this Federal Corporate 
Tax for the Company in due course. 

 
For KAYA BEAUTY CLINIC - SOLE PROPRIETORSHIP L.L.C. 
 

 
 
PIYUSH LOYA  
MANAGER   
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KAYA SKIN CARE CLINIC – SINGLE OWNER L.L.C 

MANAGERS’ REPORT 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 
 
The managers submit their report and financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023. 
We approve the financial statements and confirm that we are responsible for these, including 
selecting the accounting policies and making the judgments underlying them. We confirm that we 
have made available all relevant accounting records and information for their compilation. 
 
Results and dividends 
The loss for the year amounted to AED 17,000. The managers do not recommend any dividends for 
the year ended 31 March 2023. 
 
Review of the business 
The Company’s licensed activity is dermatology clinic.  
 
Legal and regulatory requirements 
The Company has complied with the applicable provisions of the UAE Federal Law No. (32) of 2021. 
The Company was initially registered as a sole establishment in May 2004 and on 14 February 2023, 
the legal form changed to a single owner limited liability company under the U.A.E. Federal Law No. 
(32) of 2021. 
 
Events since the end of the year 
There are no significant events since the end of the year. 
 
Shareholder and interest in share capital 
During the year, vide amendments to the memorandum of association dated 14 February 2023, the 
ownership of the sole establishment has been transferred from Mr. Ahmed Khalil Mohamed Samea 
Almutawa to Kaya Middle East FZE. Accordingly, the shareholder at 31 March 2023 and its interest 
as at that date in the share capital was as follows: 
 

Name  At 31 March 2023 
No. of  
shares 

 
AED 

% 
holding 

Kaya Middle East FZE 100  100,000 100 
 100  100,000 100% 
 
Independent auditor 
PKF were appointed as independent auditor for the year ended 31 March 2023 and it is proposed 
that they be re-appointed for the year ending 31 March 2024. 
 

 

RAJIV SURI    PIYUSH LOYA  
MANAGER    MANAGER  
16 May 2023 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  

 

To the Shareholder of KAYA SKIN CARE CLINIC   – SINGLE OWNER L.L.C 
 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
 

Opinion  
We have audited the financial statements of KAYA SKIN CARE CLINIC – SINGLE OWNER L.L.C (the 
“Company”), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2023, and the 
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and 
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a 
summary of significant accounting policies.   
 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial 
position of the Company as at 31 March 2023, and of its financial performance and its cash flows 
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs). 
 

Basis for Opinion  
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the 
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.  We are independent of the Company in 
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for 
Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to 
our audit of the financial statements in the United Arab Emirates (“UAE”), and we have fulfilled our 
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. 
 

Other Information 
Management is responsible for the other information. Other information comprises the Managers’ 
report as required by the UAE Federal Law No. (32) of 2021, which we obtained prior to the date of 
this auditor’s report. The other information does not include the financial statements and our 
auditor’s report thereon. 
 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

 
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we 
obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we concluded that there is a material 
misstatement of the other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to 
report in this regard. 

continued… 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  
(continued) 
 
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair 
view in accordance with IFRSs, and for their compliance with the applicable provisions of the UAE 
Federal Decree Law No. (32) of 2021, and for such internal control as management determines is 
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  
 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the 
Company or to cease operations or has no realistic alternative but to do so.  
 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting 
process. 
 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements  
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 
 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:  
 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, 
or the override of internal control. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management.  

continued… 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  
(continued) 

 
 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required 
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements 
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the 
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or 
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions 
and events in a manner that gives a true and fair view.  

 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.   
 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
Further, as required by the UAE Federal Law No. (32) of 2021, we report that: 

i) we have obtained all the information we considered necessary for the purpose of our audit; 

ii) the financial statements have been prepared and comply, in all material respects, with the 
applicable provisions of the UAE Federal Law No. (32) of 2021;   

iii) the Company has maintained proper books of account; 

iv) the financial information included in the Managers’ report is consistent with the books of 
account of the Company;  

v) the Company has not purchased or invested in shares during the financial year ended 
31 March 2023; 

vi) note 6 to the financial statements reflects material related party transactions and balances, and 
the terms under which they were conducted;  

vii) the Company has not made any social contributions during the financial year ended 
31 March 2023; and 

 
continued… 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  
(continued) 

 
viii) based on the information that has been made available to us, nothing has come to our 

attention which causes us to believe that the Company has contravened during the financial 
year ended 31 March 2023 any of the applicable provisions of the U.A.E. Federal Decree-Law 
No. (32) of 2021 or of its Memorandum and Articles of Association which would materially 
affect its activities or its financial position as at 31 March 2023 and there are no penalties 
imposed on the Company. 

 

For PKF 
 
 
 
 
Saranga Lalwani 
Partner 
Registration no. 5468 
Dubai 
United Arab Emirates 
16 May 2023  
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KAYA SKIN CARE CLINIC – SINGLE OWNER L.L.C 
 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
AS AT 31 MARCH 2023 

 
 
 

 
 Notes 31.3.2023 
  AED 
   
ASSETS   
Current assets   
Due from a related party 6 100,000 
Total assets  100,000 
   
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES   
Equity   
Share capital 7 100,000 
Accumulated losses  (17,000) 
  83,000 
   
Current liabilities   
Accruals 8 17,000 
Total liabilities  17,000 
Total equity and liabilities  100,000 
 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements. 
The report of the independent auditor is set forth on pages 2 to 5. 
 
Approved and authorised for issue by the shareholder on 16 May 2023 and signed on its behalf 
by the managers, Mr. Piyush Loya and Mr. Rajiv Suri 
  
For KAYA SKIN CARE CLINIC – SINGLE OWNER L.L.C 
 

 
 
RAJIV SURI    PIYUSH LOYA  
MANAGER    MANAGER 
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KAYA SKIN CARE CLINIC – SINGLE OWNER L.L.C 
 
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 

 
 
 

 
 Note 1.4.2022 

 to 
31.3.2023 

  AED 
   
Revenue  -- 
   
General and administrative expenses 10 (17,000) 
   
LOSS FOR THE YEAR  (17,000) 
   
Other comprehensive income:   
   
Other comprehensive income for the year  -- 
   
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR  (17,000) 
 
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements. 
The report of the independent auditor is set forth on pages 2 to 5. 
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KAYA SKIN CARE CLINIC – SINGLE OWNER L.L.C 
 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 

 
 
 

  
 Share  

capital 
 Accumulated 

losses 
 Total 

(Note 12) 
 AED  AED  AED 
    
Issue of share capital 100,000 -- 100,000 
    
Total comprehensive income for the year -- (17,000) (17,000) 
    
Balance at 31 March 2023 100,000 (17,000) 83,000 

  
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements. 
The report of the independent auditor is set forth on pages 2 to 5. 
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KAYA SKIN CARE CLINIC – SINGLE OWNER L.L.C 
 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 

 
 
 

 
 1.4.2022  

to 
31.3.2023 

 AED 
  
Cash flows from operating activities  
Loss for the year (17,000) 
  

  Changes in:  
 Accruals 17,000 

Net cash from operating activities -- 
  
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents -- 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year -- 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year -- 

 
Non-cash financing activities include:  
Issue of share capital  100,000 
 
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements. 
The report of the independent auditor is set forth on pages 2 to 5.
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1. LEGAL STATUS AND BUSINESS ACTIVITY 
a) KAYA SKIN CARE CLINIC – SINGLE OWNER L.L.C (the “Company”) a limited liability company 

registered in Dubai, United Arab Emirates, incorporated in accordance with the provision of 
Article 218 of the UAE Commercial Companies Law No. 8 of 1984 as amended (repealed by 
UAE Federal Law No. (2) of 2015 and further repealed by UAE Federal Law No. (32) of 2021). 
The registered office is P.O. Box 121538, Dubai, U.A.E. The Company’s licensed activity is 
dermatology clinic. 

  
b) The Company was initially registered as a sole establishment with license no. 556641 issued by 

the Department of Economy and Tourism, Dubai on 2 May 2004 and subsequently on 14 
February 2023, the legal form changed from a sole establishment to a single owner limited 
liability company under the U.A.E Federal Decree-Law No.32 of 2021. The Company has been 
managed and controlled by the parent company and therefore the assets, liabilities and the 
results of operations of the Company’s business activities have been reported in the financial 
statements of the parent company. However, the management has decided to present 
standalone financial statements of the Company for the financial year commencing 1 April 
2022 and accordingly no comparative information is presented in these financial statements 
(note 12).  

  
c) The Company also has the following branches registered in Dubai, United Arab Emirates: 
 

Branch Name Date of incorporation License no. 
Kaya Skin Care Clinic (Branch) 17 November 2016 770511 
Kaya Skin Care Clinic (Branch) 1 December 2008 619866 
Kaya Skin Care Clinic (Branch) 1 December 2004 563605 
Kaya Skin Care Clinic (Branch) 19 February 2009 622370 

 

d) The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Kaya Middle East FZE (the “parent company”), a 
Free Zone Establishment with limited liability registered in United Arab Emirates. The ultimate 
parent company is Kaya Limited (the “ultimate parent company”), a company registered in 
India which is listed on Bombay Stock Exchange and National Stock Exchange. 

  

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 
a) Statement of compliance 
 The financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting 

Standards issued or adopted by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and which 
are effective for accounting year beginning 1 April 2022, and the requirements of UAE Federal 
Law No. (32) of 2021. 

  
b) Basis of measurement 
 The financial statements are prepared using historical cost. 
  

 Historical cost is based on the fair value of the consideration given to acquire the asset or cash 
or cash equivalents expected to be paid to satisfy the liability. 

  
 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 

orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. 
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 c) Going concern 
 The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis.  
  
 When preparing the financial statements, management makes an assessment of the 

Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Financial statements are prepared on a going 
concern basis unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.  

  
 d) Adoption of new International Financial Reporting Standards 

 Standards, amendments, improvements and interpretations effective for the current period 
 The following amendments, improvements and interpretations which became effective for 

current period, did not have any significant impact on the Company’s financial statements: 
  

  Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before intended use – Amendments to IAS 1 

  Reference to the Conceptual Framework – Amendments to IFRS 3 

  Onerous Contracts – Cost of Fulfilling a Contract Amendments to IAS 37 

  Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018–2020 

 - IFRS 9 Financial Instruments 

 - IFRS 16 Leases 

 - IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards 

 - IAS 41 Agriculture 
 

 New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective and not early adopted 
 The following amendments and improvements that are assessed by management as likely to 

have an impact on the financial statements, have been issued by the IASB prior to the date the 
financial statements were authorised for issue, but have not been applied in these financial 
statements as their effective dates of adoption are for future accounting periods. 

  
  Amendments to IAS 1 – Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current (1 January 

2023) 

 Disclosure of Accounting Policies – Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2 (1 
January 2023) 

  Definition of Accounting Estimates – Amendments to IAS 8 (1 January 2023) 

  
e) Functional and presentation currency 
 The financial statements are presented in U.A.E. Dirhams (“AED”), which is also the Company’s 

functional currency. 
  
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 The significant accounting policies adopted, and which have been consistently applied, are as 

follows: 
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  a) Statutory reserve 
 In accordance with the U.A.E. Federal Law No. 32 of 2021 on Commercial Companies, the 

Company is required to establish a statutory reserve by appropriation of 5% (previous year 
10% as per UAE Federal Law No. (2) of 2015) of net profit until the reserve equals 50% of the 
share capital. The partners may resolve to discontinue such deduction when the reserve 
totals 50% of the paid-up share capital. The reserve is not available for distribution except as 
provided in the Federal Law. During the year, no transfer to statutory reserve has been made 
on account of loss incurred by the Company. 

  
  b) Revenue recognition 

 The Company’s licensed activity is dermatology clinic.  
  
 Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when the control of the goods or 

services is transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which 
the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. 

  
 The Company recognises revenue from contracts with customers based on a five-step model 

as set out in IFRS 15: 
  
 1. Identify the contracts with customers: A contract is defined as an agreement between two 

or more parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the criteria for 
every contract that must be met. 

 2. Identify the performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a 
promise in a contract with a customer to transfer a good or service to the customer. 

 3. Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to 
which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or 
services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties. 

 4. Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a 
contract that has more than one performance obligation, the Company will allocate the 
transaction price to each performance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount 
of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for satisfying 
each performance obligation. 

 5. Recognise revenue when (or as) the Company satisfies a performance obligation at a 
point in time or over time. 

 
 The Company satisfies a performance obligation and recognises revenue over time, if one of 

the following criteria is met: 
  The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the 

Company’s performance as the Company performs; or 
  The Company’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as 

the asset is created or enhanced; or 
  The Company’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the 

Company and the Company has an enforceable right to payment for performance 
completed to date. 
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 The Company is required to assess each of its contracts with customers to determine whether 
performance obligations are satisfied over time or at a point in time in order to determine the 
appropriate method of recognising revenue.  

  
 For performance obligations where one of the above conditions are not met, revenue is 

recognised at the point in time at which performance obligation is satisfied. 
  
c) Foreign currency transactions 
 Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into US Dollars at the rate of exchange ruling 

on the date of the transactions. 
  
 Monetary assets and liabilities expressed in foreign currencies are translated into US Dollars at 

the rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date. 
  
 Gains or losses resulting from foreign currency transactions are taken to the statement of 

profit or loss. 
 
d) Provisions 
 A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as 

a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to 
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

  
 The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle 

the present obligation at the reporting date taking into account the risks and uncertainties 
surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flow estimated to 
settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows. 

  
 When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be 

recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain 
that reimbursement will be received and the amount of receivable can be measured reliably. 

 

  e) Value added tax 
 As per the Federal Decree-Law No. (08) of 2017, Value Added Tax (VAT), needs to be charged at 

5% standard rate or 0% (as the case may be) on every taxable supply and deemed supply made 
by the taxable person. The Company does not have any output taxable supplies of goods or 
services. As VAT register is not mandatory in UAE for such an entity, the Company has opted 
not to register under VAT. 

  
  f) Current versus non-current classification 

 The Company presents assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position based on 
current/non-current classification. An asset is current when it is:  

  
  Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle. 

 Held primarily for the purpose of trading.  
 Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or;  
 Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability 

for at least twelve months after the reporting period.  
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 All other assets are classified as non-current. 
  

 A liability is current when: 
  It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle.  

 It is held primarily for the purpose of trading.  
 It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or; 
 There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve 

months after the reporting period. 
  
 All other liabilities are classified as non-current. 

 
  g) Financial instruments 
 Classification  
 On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortised cost; debt 

investment at fair value through other comprehensive income, equity investment at fair value 
through other comprehensive income; or fair value through profit or loss. 

  
 The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial assets’ 

contractual cash flow characteristics and the Company’s business model for managing them. 
  
 In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value 

through other comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are “solely 
payments of principal and interest” on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is 
performed at an instrumental level. 

 
 The Company’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its 

financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash 
flows will result from collecting contractual cashflows, selling the financial assets, or both. 

  
 Financial liabilities are classified as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or at 

amortised cost. The Company determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial 
recognition. 

  

 Recognition 
 Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when, and only when, the Company 

becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Regular purchases and sales 
of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Company commits to 
purchase or sell the asset. 

  
 Derecognition 
 Financial assets are de-recognised when, and only when,  

 The contractual rights to receive cash flows expire or  
 The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has 

assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a 
third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either  
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 (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,  
or  

(b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and 
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.  

 
 Financial liabilities are de-recognised when, and only when, they are extinguished i.e. when 

obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. 
  

 Measurement 
 A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component that 

is initially measured at the transaction price) is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item 
not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its 
acquisition. Transactions costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are 
expensed in profit or loss.   

  
 The following accounting policies apply to the subsequent measurement of financial assets 

and liabilities. 
  
 Financial assets 

 Financial assets at amortised cost 
 Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised 

cost less impairment loss and deferred income, if any (except for those assets that are 
designated as at fair value through other comprehensive income on initial recognition) using 
the effective interest method. 

  
 1. the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to 

collect contractual cash flows; and  
 2. the contractual terms of the instrument give rise to cash flows on specified dates that are 

solely payments of principal and profit on the principal amount outstanding. 
  
 All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value. 
  
 Foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or 

loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss. 
  
 The financial assets at amortised cost comprise of due from a related party. 
  
 Financial liabilities 
 All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 

method or at fair value through profit or loss. 
  
 Financial liabilities at amortised cost 
 Financial liabilities at amortised cost comprise of accruals. 
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 Impairment of financial assets 
 The Company recognises an allowance for expected credit losses for all debt instruments not 

held at fair value through profit or loss. Expected credit losses are based on the difference 
between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows 
that the Company expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective 
interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or 
other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms. 

  
 Loss allowances are measured on either of the following basis: 
  
  12-month expected credit losses: expected credit losses that result from possible default 

events within 12 months after the reporting date; and  

 Lifetime expected credit losses: expected credit losses that result from all possible default 
events over the expected life of a financial instrument. 

  
 The Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit 

losses, except for the following which are measured as 12-month expected credit losses: 
  
 - Due from a related party for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the 

expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial 
recognition. 

  
 When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since 

initial recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers 
reasonable and supportive information that is relevant and available without undue cost or 
effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the 
Company’s historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward 
looking information. 

  
 The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is 

more than 30 days past due. 
  
 The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when: 
  
  The borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without 

recourse by the Company to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or 
 The financial asset is more than 365 days past due. 

  
 The maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum 

contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk. 
  
 At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised 

cost are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that 
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have 
occurred. 
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 Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross 
carrying amount of the asset.  

 
 Offsetting 
 Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of 

financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts 
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability 
simultaneously. 

  
 Equity 
 Share capital is recorded at the value of proceeds received towards interest in share capital of 

the Company. 
  
h) Fair value measurement 
 The Company discloses the fair value of financial instruments measured at amortised cost.  
  
 The fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in 

an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value 
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the 
liability takes place either: 

  
  In the principal market for the asset or liability; or 

 In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. 
  
 The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using assumptions that the market 

participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that the market participants 
act in their best economic interests. 

  
4 SIGNIFICANT JUDGMENTS EMPLOYED IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 The significant judgments made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant 

effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements are as follows: 

  
 Classification of financial assets 
 The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s 

contractual cash flow characteristics and the Company’s business model for managing them. 
  
 Impairment 
 The Company applies expected credit loss model to measure loss allowance in case of financial 

assets on the basis of 12-month expected credit losses or lifetime expected credit losses 
depending on credit risk characteristics and how changes in economic factors affect expected 
credit losses, which are determined on a probability-weighted basis. 

  
5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY  
 Key assumptions made concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty 

at the reporting date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the 
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are as follows: 
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 Impairment of financial assets 
 The loss allowance for financial assets are based on assumptions about the risk of default and 

expected loss rates. The management uses judgement in making these assumptions and 
selecting the inputs to the impairment calculations based on the past history, existing market 
conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period. Details of 
the key assumptions and inputs used are disclosed in note 3(g). 

  
6. RELATED PARTIES  
 The Company enters into transactions with entities that fall within the definition of a related 

party as contained in International Accounting Standard 24. The management considers such 
transactions to be in the normal course of business and at prices determined by the 
management. 

  

 Related parties comprise shareholder, companies under common ownership and/or common 
management control and managers. 

  
 At the reporting date, significant balance with the shareholder was as follows. 

   31.3.2023 
   AED 
 Due from a related party(a)  100,000 

 

(a) Represents due from shareholder against the share capital of the Company. 
  

 Balance is unsecured and is expected to be settled in cash. Repayment and other terms are set 
out in note 11. 

  
 There are no significant transactions with related parties during the year.  
  
 Certain staff and administrative related services are availed from a related party free of cost. 
   
  31.3.2023 
  AED 
7. SHARE CAPITAL  
 Issued and paid up:  
 100 shares of AED 1,000 each  100,000 

  
 During the year, vide amendments to the memorandum of association dated 14 February 2023, 

the ownership of the sole establishment has been transferred from Mr. Ahmed Khalil 
Mohamed Samea Almutawa to Kaya Middle East FZE. Accordingly, the shareholder at 31 March 
2023 its interest as at that date in the share capital was as follows: 
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Name  At 31 March 2023 
No. of  
shares 

 
AED 

% 
holding 

Kaya Middle East FZE 100  100,000 100 
 100  100,000 100% 

     
  31.3.2023 
  AED 
8. ACCRUALS  
 Accruals 17,000 

 
 The entire accruals are due for payment within one year from the reporting date. 
    
9. MANAGEMENT OF CAPITAL   
 The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to ensure that the Company continues 

as a going concern and to provide the shareholder with a rate of return on its investment 
commensurate with the level of risk assumed. 

  
 Capital comprises equity funds as presented in the statement of financial position. Debt 

comprises total amounts owed by the Company net of cash and cash equivalents. 
  
 The Company is subject to externally imposed capital requirements as per provisions of Article 

308 of the UAE Federal Law No. (32) of 2021. The Company has complied with all the capital 
requirements to which it is subject. 

  
 Funds generated from internal accruals together with funds received from a related party are 

retained in the business, according to the business requirements and maintain capital at 
desired levels. 

   
  1.4.2022  

to 
31.3.2023 

  AED 
   
10. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES  
 Other expenses 17,000 
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11. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT 
 Financial instruments 
 Classification and fair values 
 The net carrying amounts as at the reporting date of financial assets and financial liabilities are 

as follows: 
   
  At amortised cost 
  31.3.2023 
  AED 

 Financial assets  
 Due from a related party 100,000 

   
 Financial liabilities  
 Accruals 17,000 

 
 Fair vale measurement and disclosures 
 The management assesses the fair values of all its financial assets and financial liabilities at 

each reporting date. 
  

 The fair values of due from a related party and accruals approximate their carrying amounts 
largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments. 

  
 Financial risk management 
 Risk management objectives 
 Risk is inherent in the Company’s activities but is managed through a process of ongoing 

identification, measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. This 
process of risk management is critical to the Company’s continuing profitability. The Company’s 
risk management focusses on actively securing short to medium term cash flows by minimising 
the exposure to financial markets. 

  

 The primary risks to which the business is exposed which are unchanged from the previous year 
comprise credit risks, liquidity risks and market risks (including currency risks and cash flow 
interest rate risks and fair value interest rate risks). 

  

 The management of the Company reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks 
which are summarised below: 

  
 Credit risk 
 Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation 

and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. 
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 Credit risk is managed by assessing the creditworthiness of potential customers and the 
potential for exposure to the market in which they operate, combined with regular monitoring 
and follow-up. 

  
 Financial assets that potentially expose the Company to concentrations of credit risk comprise 

principally due from a related party. 
  
 The management assesses the credit risk arising from due from a related party taking into 

account their financial position, past experience and other factors. Based on the assessment 
individual risk limits are determined. 

  
 Based on the assessment, the management believes that no impairment provision is required 

under IFRS 9. 
  
 Liquidity risk 
 Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may encounter difficulty in meeting financial 

obligations due to shortage of funds. The Company's exposure to liquidity risk arises primarily 
from mismatches of the maturities of financial assets and financial liabilities. 

  

 The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will 
always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed 
conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company's   
reputation. The Company manages liquidity risk by monitoring forecast and actual cash flows 
and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. The Concern limits its 
liquidity risk by ensuring adequate arrangements with its related parties. 

  
 The table below summarises the maturities of the Company’s undiscounted financial liabilities 

at the reporting date, based on contractual payment dates and current market interest rates. 
   
  Less than 

one year 
  31.3.2023 
  AED 
 Accruals 17,000 
 

 Market risk 
 Market risk is the risk that the changes in market prices, such as foreign currency exchange 

rates, interest rates and prices, will affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of 
financial instrument. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control 
market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the returns. 
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 Currency risk 
 Currency risk is the risk that the values of financial instruments will fluctuate because of 

changes in foreign exchange rates. 
 

 There are no significant currency risks as substantially all financial assets and financial liabilities 
are denominated in U.A.E. Dirhams or US Dollars to which the Dirham is fixed. 

  
 Interest rate risk 
 Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate because of 

changes in market interest rates. 
  
 The Company is not exposed to any significant interest rate risks. 
  
12. COMPARATIVE INFORMATION 
 These are the first set of financial statements prepared by the management for the Company 

[Note 1(b)] and, accordingly, no comparative information is presented. 
  
13. CORPORATE TAX 
 On 9 December 2022, the UAE Ministry of Finance issued the Federal Decree-Law No. (47) of 

2022 introducing Corporate Tax, effective for financial years commencing on or after 1 June 
2023. The rate of corporate tax is 9% on the taxable income exceeding AED 375,000 and 0% for 
qualifying free zone companies on their qualifying income, subject to meeting specified 
conditions. There is no impact of this law on the financial statements of the Company for the 
year ended 31 March 2023.  Management will assess the implications of this Federal Corporate 
Tax for the Company in due course. 

 
For KAYA SKIN CARE CLINIC – SINGLE OWNER L.L.C 
 

 
RAJIV SURI     PIYUSH LOYA  
MANAGER     MANAGER   
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KAYA SKIN CARE CLINIC - SOLE PROPRIETORSHIP L.L.C. 

MANAGER’S REPORT 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 
 
The manager submits his report and financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023. 
I approve the financial statements and confirm that I am responsible for these, including selecting 
the accounting policies and making the judgments underlying them. I confirm that I have made 
available all relevant accounting records and information for their compilation. 
 
Results and dividends 
The loss for the year amounted to AED 17,000. The Manager does not recommend any dividends 
for the year ended 31 March 2023. 
 
Review of the business 
The Company’s licensed activities are medical complex and retail of cosmetic products. 
 
Legal and regulatory requirements 
The Company has complied with the applicable provisions of the UAE Federal Law No. (32) of 2021. 
The Company was initially registered as an establishment in November 2005 and on 9 February 
2023, the legal form changed to a sole proprietorship limited liability company under the U.A.E. 
Federal Law No. (32) of 2021. 
 
Events since the end of the year 
There are no significant events since the end of the year. 
 
Shareholder and interest in share capital 
During the year, vide amendments to the memorandum of association dated 9 February 2023, the 
ownership of the establishment has been transferred from Mr. Abdulla Khalil Mohamed Samea 
Almutawa to Kaya Middle East FZE. Accordingly, the shareholder at 31 March 2023 and its interest 
as at that date in the share capital was as follows: 
 

Name  At 31 March 2023 
No. of  
shares 

 
AED 

% 
holding 

Kaya Middle East FZE 100  100,000 100 
 100  100,000 100% 
 
Independent auditor 
PKF were appointed as independent auditor for the year ended 31 March 2023 and it is proposed 
that they be re-appointed for the year ending 31 March 2024. 
 
 

 
 
PIYUSH LOYA 
MANAGER       
16 May 2023 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  

To the Shareholder of KAYA SKIN CARE CLINIC - SOLE PROPRIETORSHIP L.L.C. 
 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
 

Opinion  
We have audited the financial statements of KAYA SKIN CARE CLINIC - SOLE PROPRIETORSHIP 
L.L.C. (the “Company”), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2023, 
and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in 
equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, 
including a summary of significant accounting policies.   
 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial 
position of the Company as at 31 March 2023, and of its financial performance and its cash flows 
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs). 
 

Basis for Opinion  
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the 
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.  We are independent of the Company in 
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for 
Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to 
our audit of the financial statements in the United Arab Emirates (“UAE”), and we have fulfilled our 
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. 
 

Other Information 
Management is responsible for the other information. Other information comprises the Manager’s 
report as required by the UAE Federal Law No. (32) of 2021, which we obtained prior to the date of 
this auditor’s report. The other information does not include the financial statements and our 
auditor’s report thereon. 
 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we 
obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we concluded that there is a material 
misstatement of the other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to 
report in this regard. 

continued… 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  
(continued) 

 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair 
view in accordance with IFRSs, and for their compliance with the applicable provisions of the UAE 
Federal Decree Law No. (32) of 2021, and for such internal control as management determines is 
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  
 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the 
Company or to cease operations or has no realistic alternative but to do so.  
 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting 
process. 
 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements  
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 
 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:  
 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, 
or the override of internal control. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management.  

continued… 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  
(continued) 

 
 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required 
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements 
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the 
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or 
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions 
and events in a manner that gives a true and fair view.  

 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.   
 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
Further, as required by the UAE Federal Law No. (32) of 2021, we report that: 

i) we have obtained all the information we considered necessary for the purpose of our audit; 

ii) the financial statements have been prepared and comply, in all material respects, with the 
applicable provisions of the UAE Federal Law No. (32) of 2021;   

iii) the Company has maintained proper books of account; 

iv) the financial information included in the Manager’s report is consistent with the books of 
account of the Company;  

v) the Company has not purchased or invested in shares during the financial year ended 
31 March 2023; 

vi) note 6 to the financial statements reflects material related party transactions and balances, and 
the terms under which they were conducted;  

vii) the Company has not made any social contributions during the financial year ended 
31 March 2023; and 

 
continued… 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  
(continued) 

 
viii) based on the information that has been made available to us, nothing has come to our 

attention which causes us to believe that the Company has contravened during the financial 
year ended 31 March 2023 any of the applicable provisions of the U.A.E. Federal Decree-Law 
No. (32) of 2021 or of its Memorandum and Articles of Association which would materially 
affect its activities or its financial position as at 31 March 2023 and there are no penalties 
imposed on the Company. 

 

For PKF 
 
 
 
 
Saranga Lalwani 
Partner 
Registration no. 5468 
Dubai 
United Arab Emirates 
16 May 2023  
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KAYA SKIN CARE CLINIC - SOLE PROPRIETORSHIP L.L.C. 
 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
AS AT 31 MARCH 2023 

 
 
 

 
 Notes 31.3.2023 
  AED 
   
ASSETS   
Current assets   
Due from a related party 6 100,000 
Total assets  100,000 
   
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES   
Equity   
Share capital 7 100,000 
Accumulated losses  (17,000) 
  83,000 
   
Current liabilities   
Accruals 8 17,000 
Total liabilities  17,000 
Total equity and liabilities  100,000 
 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements. 
The report of the independent auditor is set forth on pages 2 to 5. 
 
Approved and authorised for issue by the shareholder on 16 May 2023 and signed on its behalf 
by the manager, Mr. Piyush Loya. 
  
For KAYA SKIN CARE CLINIC - SOLE PROPRIETORSHIP L.L.C. 
 
 
 
 
PIYUSH LOYA  
MANAGER 
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KAYA SKIN CARE CLINIC - SOLE PROPRIETORSHIP L.L.C. 
 
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 

 
 
 

 
 Note 1.4.2022 

 to 
31.3.2023 

  AED 
   
Revenue  -- 
   
General and administrative expenses 10 (17,000) 
   
LOSS FOR THE YEAR  (17,000) 
   
Other comprehensive income:   
   
Other comprehensive income for the year  -- 
   
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR  (17,000) 
 
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements. 
The report of the independent auditor is set forth on pages 2 to 5. 
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KAYA SKIN CARE CLINIC - SOLE PROPRIETORSHIP L.L.C. 
 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 

 
 
 

  
 Share  

capital 
 Accumulated 

losses 
 Total 

(Note 12) 
 AED  AED  AED 
    
Issue of share capital 100,000  100,000 
    
Total comprehensive income for the year -- (17,000) (17,000) 
    
Balance at 31 March 2023 100,000 (17,000) 83,000 

  
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements. 
The report of the independent auditor is set forth on pages 2 to 5. 
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KAYA SKIN CARE CLINIC - SOLE PROPRIETORSHIP L.L.C. 
 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 

 
 
 

 
 1.4.2022  

to 
31.3.2023 

 AED 
  
Cash flows from operating activities  
Loss for the year (17,000) 
  

  Changes in:  
 Accruals 17,000 

Net cash from operating activities -- 
  
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents -- 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year -- 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year -- 

 
Non-cash investing activities include  
Issue of share capital 100,000 
 
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements. 
The report of the independent auditor is set forth on pages 2 to 5.



KAYA SKIN CARE CLINIC - SOLE PROPRIETORSHIP L.L.C. 
  

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 

 
 

 

Page 10 of 22 

1. LEGAL STATUS AND BUSINESS ACTIVITY 
a) KAYA SKIN CARE CLINIC - SOLE PROPRIETORSHIP L.L.C. (the “Company”) a limited liability 

company registered in Abu Dhabi, United Arab Emirates, incorporated in accordance with the 
provision of Article 218 of the UAE Commercial Companies Law No. 8 of 1984 as amended 
(repealed by UAE Federal Law No. (2) of 2015 and further repealed by UAE Federal Law No. 
(32) of 2021).  The registered office is P.O. Box 41756, Al Wahda Sports and Cultural Club, Abu 
Dhabi, U.A.E. The Company’s licensed activities are medical complex and retail of cosmetic 
products. 

  
b) The Company was initially registered as an establishment with license no. CN 1079362 issued 

by the Department of Economic Development, Abu Dhabi on 30 November 2005 and 
subsequently on 9 February 2023, the legal form changed from establishment to a sole 
proprietorship limited liability company under the U.A.E Federal Decree-Law No.32 of 2021. 
The Company has been managed and controlled by the parent company and therefore the 
assets, liabilities and the results of operations of the Company’s business activities have been 
reported in the financial statements of the parent company. However, the management has 
decided to present standalone financial statements of the Company for the financial year 
commencing 1 April 2022 and accordingly no comparative information is presented in these 
financial statements (note 12). 

  
c) The Company also has the following branches registered in Abu Dhabi, United Arab Emirates: 
 

Branch Name Date of incorporation License no. 

Kaya Skin care clinic – Branch 6 April 2009 CN 1079362-1 
Kaya Skin care clinic – Branch 2 29 April 2010 CN 1079362-2 
Kaya Skin Care Clinic - Branch 3 - Abu Dhabi Mall 18 July 2010 CN 1079362-3 
Kaya Skin Care Clinic - Mushrif Mall Branch 30 March 2011 CN 1079362-4 

 

d) The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Kaya Middle East FZE (the “parent company”), a 
Free Zone Establishment with limited liability registered in United Arab Emirates. The ultimate 
parent company is Kaya Limited (the “ultimate parent company”), a company registered in 
India which is listed on Bombay Stock Exchange and National Stock Exchange. 

  
2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 
a) Statement of compliance 
 The financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting 

Standards issued or adopted by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and which 
are effective for accounting year beginning 1 April 2022, and the requirements of UAE Federal 
Law No. (32) of 2021. 

  
b) Basis of measurement 
 The financial statements are prepared using historical cost. 
  
 Historical cost is based on the fair value of the consideration given to acquire the asset or cash 

or cash equivalents expected to be paid to satisfy the liability. 



KAYA SKIN CARE CLINIC - SOLE PROPRIETORSHIP L.L.C. 
  

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 
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 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. 

  
 c) Going concern 
 The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis.  
  
 When preparing the financial statements, management makes an assessment of the 

Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Financial statements are prepared on a going 
concern basis unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.  

  
 d) Adoption of new International Financial Reporting Standards 

 Standards, amendments, improvements and interpretations effective for the current period 
 The following amendments, improvements and interpretations which became effective for 

current period, did not have any significant impact on the Company’s financial statements: 
  

  Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before intended use – Amendments to IAS 1 

  Reference to the Conceptual Framework – Amendments to IFRS 3 

  Onerous Contracts – Cost of Fulfilling a Contract Amendments to IAS 37 

  Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018–2020 

 - IFRS 9 Financial Instruments 
 - IFRS 16 Leases 
 - IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards 

 - IAS 41 Agriculture 
 

 New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective and not early adopted 
 The following amendments and improvements that are assessed by management as likely to 

have an impact on the financial statements, have been issued by the IASB prior to the date the 
financial statements were authorised for issue, but have not been applied in these financial 
statements as their effective dates of adoption are for future accounting periods. 

  
  Amendments to IAS 1 – Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current (1 January 

2023) 

 Disclosure of Accounting Policies – Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2 (1 
January 2023) 

  Definition of Accounting Estimates – Amendments to IAS 8 (1 January 2023) 
  

e) Functional and presentation currency 
 The financial statements are presented in U.A.E. Dirhams (“AED”), which is also the Company’s 

functional currency. 
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 The significant accounting policies adopted, and which have been consistently applied, are as 

follows: 
  

  a) Statutory reserve 
 In accordance with the U.A.E. Federal Law No. 32 of 2021 on Commercial Companies, the 

Company is required to establish a statutory reserve by appropriation of 5% (previous year 
10% as per UAE Federal Law No. (2) of 2015) of net profit until the reserve equals 50% of the 
share capital. The partners may resolve to discontinue such deduction when the reserve 
totals 50% of the paid-up share capital. The reserve is not available for distribution except as 
provided in the Federal Law. During the year, no transfer to statutory reserve has been made 
on account of loss incurred by the Company. 

  
  b) Revenue recognition 

 The Company’s licensed activities are medical complex and retail of cosmetic products.  
  
 Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when the control of the goods or 

services is transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which 
the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. 

  
 The Company recognises revenue from contracts with customers based on a five-step model 

as set out in IFRS 15: 
  

 1. Identify the contracts with customers: A contract is defined as an agreement between two 
or more parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the criteria for 
every contract that must be met. 

 2. Identify the performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a 
promise in a contract with a customer to transfer a good or service to the customer. 

 3. Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to 
which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or 
services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties. 

 4. Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a 
contract that has more than one performance obligation, the Company will allocate the 
transaction price to each performance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount 
of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for satisfying 
each performance obligation. 

 5. Recognise revenue when (or as) the Company satisfies a performance obligation at a 
point in time or over time. 

 
 The Company satisfies a performance obligation and recognises revenue over time, if one of 

the following criteria is met: 
  The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the 

Company’s performance as the Company performs; or 



KAYA SKIN CARE CLINIC - SOLE PROPRIETORSHIP L.L.C. 
  

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 

 
 

 

Page 13 of 22 

  The Company’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as 
the asset is created or enhanced; or 

  The Company’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the 
Company and the Company has an enforceable right to payment for performance 
completed to date. 

  
 The Company is required to assess each of its contracts with customers to determine whether 

performance obligations are satisfied over time or at a point in time in order to determine the 
appropriate method of recognising revenue.  

  
 For performance obligations where one of the above conditions are not met, revenue is 

recognised at the point in time at which performance obligation is satisfied. 
  
c) Foreign currency transactions 
 Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into US Dollars at the rate of exchange ruling 

on the date of the transactions. 
  
 Monetary assets and liabilities expressed in foreign currencies are translated into US Dollars at 

the rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date. 
  

 Gains or losses resulting from foreign currency transactions are taken to the statement of 
profit or loss. 

 
d) Provisions 
 A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as 

a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to 
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

  
 The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle 

the present obligation at the reporting date taking into account the risks and uncertainties 
surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flow estimated to 
settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows. 

  
 When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be 

recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain 
that reimbursement will be received and the amount of receivable can be measured reliably. 

 

  e) Value added tax 
 As per the Federal Decree-Law No. (08) of 2017, Value Added Tax (VAT), needs to be charged at 

5% standard rate or 0% (as the case may be) on every taxable supply and deemed supply made 
by the taxable person. The Company does not have any output taxable supplies of goods or 
services. As VAT register is not mandatory in UAE for such an entity, the Company has opted 
not to register under VAT. 
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  f) Current versus non-current classification 
 The Company presents assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position based on 

current/non-current classification. An asset is current when it is:  
  
  Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle. 

 Held primarily for the purpose of trading.  

 Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or;  

 Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability 
for at least twelve months after the reporting period.  

  

 All other assets are classified as non-current. 
  

 A liability is current when: 
  It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle.  

 It is held primarily for the purpose of trading.  

 It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or; 

 There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve 
months after the reporting period. 

  
 All other liabilities are classified as non-current. 

 
  g) Financial instruments 
 Classification  
 On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortised cost; debt 

investment at fair value through other comprehensive income, equity investment at fair value 
through other comprehensive income; or fair value through profit or loss. 

  
 The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial assets’ 

contractual cash flow characteristics and the Company’s business model for managing them. 
  
 In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value 

through other comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are “solely 
payments of principal and interest” on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is 
performed at an instrumental level. 

 
 The Company’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its 

financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash 
flows will result from collecting contractual cashflows, selling the financial assets, or both. 

  
 Financial liabilities are classified as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or at 

amortised cost. The Company determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial 
recognition. 
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 Recognition 
 Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when, and only when, the Company 

becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Regular purchases and sales 
of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Company commits to 
purchase or sell the asset. 

  

 Derecognition 
 Financial assets are de-recognised when, and only when,  

 The contractual rights to receive cash flows expire or  
 The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has 

assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a 
third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either  

  
 (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,  

or  
(b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and 

rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.  
 

 Financial liabilities are de-recognised when, and only when, they are extinguished i.e. when 
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. 

  
 Measurement 
 A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component that 

is initially measured at the transaction price) is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item 
not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its 
acquisition. Transactions costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are 
expensed in profit or loss.   

  
 The following accounting policies apply to the subsequent measurement of financial assets 

and liabilities. 
  
 Financial assets 

 Financial assets at amortised cost 
 Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised 

cost less impairment loss and deferred income, if any (except for those assets that are 
designated as at fair value through other comprehensive income on initial recognition) using 
the effective interest method. 

  
 1. the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to 

collect contractual cash flows; and  
 2. the contractual terms of the instrument give rise to cash flows on specified dates that are 

solely payments of principal and profit on the principal amount outstanding. 
  
 All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value. 
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 Foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or 
loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss. 

  
 The financial assets at amortised cost comprise of due from a related party. 
  
 Financial liabilities 
 All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 

method or at fair value through profit or loss. 
  
 Financial liabilities at amortised cost 
 Financial liabilities at amortised cost comprise of accruals. 
  
 Impairment of financial assets 

 The Company recognises an allowance for expected credit losses for all debt instruments not 
held at fair value through profit or loss. Expected credit losses are based on the difference 
between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows 
that the Company expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective 
interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or 
other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms. 

  
 Loss allowances are measured on either of the following basis: 
  
  12-month expected credit losses: expected credit losses that result from possible default 

events within 12 months after the reporting date; and  

 Lifetime expected credit losses: expected credit losses that result from all possible default 
events over the expected life of a financial instrument. 

  
 The Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit 

losses, except for the following which are measured as 12-month expected credit losses: 
  
 - Due from a related party for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the 

expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial 
recognition. 

  
 When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since 

initial recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers 
reasonable and supportive information that is relevant and available without undue cost or 
effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the 
Company’s historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward 
looking information. 

  
 The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is 

more than 30 days past due. 
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 The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when: 
  
  The borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without 

recourse by the Company to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or 
 The financial asset is more than 365 days past due. 

  

 The maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum 
contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk. 

  
 At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised 

cost are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that 
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have 
occurred. 

  
 Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross 

carrying amount of the asset.  
 
 Offsetting 
 Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of 

financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts 
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability 
simultaneously. 

  
 Equity 
 Share capital is recorded at the value of proceeds received towards interest in share capital of 

the Company. 
  
h) Fair value measurement 
 The Company discloses the fair value of financial instruments measured at amortised cost.  
  
 The fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in 

an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value 
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the 
liability takes place either: 

  

  In the principal market for the asset or liability; or 
 In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. 

  
 The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using assumptions that the market 

participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that the market participants 
act in their best economic interests. 

  
4 SIGNIFICANT JUDGMENTS EMPLOYED IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 The significant judgments made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant 

effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements are as follows: 
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 Classification of financial assets 
 The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s 

contractual cash flow characteristics and the Company’s business model for managing them. 
  
 Impairment 
 The Company applies expected credit loss model to measure loss allowance in case of financial 

assets on the basis of 12-month expected credit losses or lifetime expected credit losses 
depending on credit risk characteristics and how changes in economic factors affect expected 
credit losses, which are determined on a probability-weighted basis. 

  
5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY  
 Key assumptions made concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty 

at the reporting date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the 
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are as follows: 

  
 Impairment of financial assets 
 The loss allowance for financial assets are based on assumptions about the risk of default and 

expected loss rates. The management uses judgement in making these assumptions and 
selecting the inputs to the impairment calculations based on the past history, existing market 
conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period. Details of 
the key assumptions and inputs used are disclosed in note 3(g). 

  
6. RELATED PARTIES  
 The Company enters into transactions with entities that fall within the definition of a related 

party as contained in International Accounting Standard 24. The management considers such 
transactions to be in the normal course of business and at prices determined by the 
management. 

  

 Related parties comprise shareholder, companies under common ownership and/or common 
management control and manager. 

  
 At the reporting date, significant balance with the shareholder was as follows. 

    
   31.3.2023 
   AED 
    
 Due from a related party(a)  100,000 

 

(a) Represents due from shareholder against the share capital of the Company. 
  
 Balance is unsecured and is expected to be settled in cash. Repayment and other terms are set 

out in note 11. 
  
 There are no significant transactions with related parties during the year. 
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 Certain staff and administrative related services are availed from a related party free of cost. 
   
  31.3.2023 
  AED 
7. SHARE CAPITAL  
 Issued and paid up:  
 100 shares of AED 1,000 each  100,000 
  
 During the year, vide amendments to the memorandum of association dated 9 February 2023, 

the ownership of the establishment has been transferred from Mr. Abdulla Khalil Mohamed 
Samea Almutawa to Kaya Middle East FZE. Accordingly, the shareholder at 31 March 2023 and 
its interest as at that date in the share capital was as follows: 

 
Name  At 31 March 2023 

No. of  
shares 

 
AED 

% 
holding 

Kaya Middle East FZE 100  100,000 100 
 100  100,000 100% 

 
  31.3.2023 
  AED 
8. ACCRUALS  
 Accruals 17,000 
 
 The entire accruals are due for payment within one year from the reporting date. 
    
9. MANAGEMENT OF CAPITAL   
 The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to ensure that the Company continues as 

a going concern and to provide the shareholder with a rate of return on its investment 
commensurate with the level of risk assumed. 

  
 Capital comprises equity funds as presented in the statement of financial position. Debt 

comprises total amounts owed by the Company net of cash and cash equivalents. 
  
 The Company is subject to externally imposed capital requirements as per provisions of Article 

308 of the UAE Federal Law No. (32) of 2021. The Company has complied with all the capital 
requirements to which it is subject. 

    
 Funds generated from internal accruals together with funds received from a related party are 

retained in the business, according to the business requirements and maintain capital at 
desired levels. 
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  1.4.2022 
to 

31.3.2023 
  AED 
10. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES  
 Other expenses 17,000 
  
11. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT 
 Financial instruments 
 Classification and fair values 
 The net carrying amounts as at the reporting date of financial assets and financial liabilities are 

as follows: 
   

  
At amortised 

cost 
  31.3.2023 
  AED 

   
 Financial assets  
 Due from a related party 100,000 

 

 Financial liabilities  
 Accruals 17,000 
 
 Fair vale measurement and disclosures 
 The management assesses the fair values of all its financial assets and financial liabilities at 

each reporting date. 
  

 The fair values of due from a related party and accruals approximate their carrying amounts 
largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments. 

  
 Financial risk management 
 Risk management objectives 
 Risk is inherent in the Company’s activities but is managed through a process of ongoing 

identification, measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. This 
process of risk management is critical to the Company’s continuing profitability. The Company’s 
risk management focusses on actively securing short to medium term cash flows by minimising 
the exposure to financial markets. 

  
 The primary risks to which the business is exposed which are unchanged from the previous year 

comprise credit risks, liquidity risks and market risks (including currency risks and cash flow 
interest rate risks and fair value interest rate risks). 

  
 The management of the Company reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks 

which are summarised below: 
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 Credit risk 
 Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation 

and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. 
  
 Credit risk is managed by assessing the creditworthiness of potential customers and the 

potential for exposure to the market in which they operate, combined with regular monitoring 
and follow-up. 

  
 Financial assets that potentially expose the Company to concentrations of credit risk comprise 

principally due from a related party. 
  
 The management assesses the credit risk arising from due from a related party taking into 

account their financial position, past experience and other factors. Based on the assessment 
individual risk limits are determined. 

  
 Based on the assessment, the management believes that no impairment provision is required 

under IFRS 9. 
  
 Liquidity risk 
 Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may encounter difficulty in meeting financial 

obligations due to shortage of funds. The Company's exposure to liquidity risk arises primarily 
from mismatches of the maturities of financial assets and financial liabilities. 

  

 The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will 
always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed 
conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company's   
reputation. The Company manages liquidity risk by monitoring forecast and actual cash flows 
and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. The Concern limits its 
liquidity risk by ensuring adequate arrangements with its related parties. 

  
 The table below summarises the maturities of the Company’s undiscounted financial liabilities 

at the reporting date, based on contractual payment dates and current market interest rates. 
   
  Less than 

one year 
  31.3.2023 
  AED 
   
 Accruals 17,000 
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 Market risk 
 Market risk is the risk that the changes in market prices, such as foreign currency exchange 

rates, interest rates and prices, will affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of 
financial instrument. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control 
market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the returns. 

  
 Currency risk 
 Currency risk is the risk that the values of financial instruments will fluctuate because of 

changes in foreign exchange rates. 
  
 There are no significant currency risks as substantially all financial assets and financial liabilities 

are denominated in U.A.E. Dirhams or US Dollars to which the Dirham is fixed. 
  
 Interest rate risk 
 Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate because of 

changes in market interest rates. 
  
 The Company is not exposed to any significant interest rate risks. 
  
12. COMPARATIVE INFORMATION 
 These are the first set of financial statements prepared by the management for the Company 

[Note 1(b)] and, accordingly, no comparative information is presented. 
  
13. CORPORATE TAX 
 On 9 December 2022, the UAE Ministry of Finance issued the Federal Decree-Law No. (47) of 

2022 introducing Corporate Tax, effective for financial years commencing on or after 1 June 
2023. The rate of corporate tax is 9% on the taxable income exceeding AED 375,000 and 0% for 
qualifying free zone companies on their qualifying income, subject to meeting specified 
conditions. There is no impact of this law on the financial statements of the Company for the 
year ended 31 March 2023.  Management will assess the implications of this Federal Corporate 
Tax for the Company in due course. 

 

 
For KAYA SKIN CARE CLINIC - SOLE PROPRIETORSHIP L.L.C. 
 
 
 
 
PIYUSH LOYA  
MANAGER  
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KAYA SKIN MEDICAL CENTER LLC 

MANAGER’S REPORT 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 
 
The manager submits his report and financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023. 
I approve the financial statements and confirm that I am responsible for these, including selecting 
the accounting policies and making the judgments underlying them. I confirm that I have made 
available all relevant accounting records and information for their compilation. 
 
Results and dividends 
The loss for the year amounted to AED 17,000. The Manager does not recommend any dividends 
for the year ended 31 March 2023. 
 
Review of the business 
The Company’s licensed activities are dermatology and venerology clinic, laser complexion care and 
medical complex.  
 
Legal and regulatory requirements 
The Company has complied with the applicable provisions of the UAE Federal Law No. (32) of 2021. 
The Company was initially registered as branch of a free zone company in September 2006 and on 
17 March 2023, the legal form changed to a limited liability company under the U.A.E. Federal Law 
No. (32) of 2021. 
 
Events since the end of the year 
There are no significant events since the end of the year. 
 
Shareholders and interests in share capital 
During the year, vide amendment to the memorandum of association dated 17 March 2023, 1% of 
the ownership in the Company has been transferred from Kaya Middle East FZE to Mr. Adnan Ali 
Abdullah Muhammad. Accordingly, the shareholders at 31 March 2023 and their interests as at that 
date in the share capital were as follows: 
 

Name  At 31 March 2023 
No. of  
shares 

 
AED 

% 
holding 

Kaya Middle East FZE 99  99,000 99 
Adnan Ali Abdullah Muhammad  1  1,000 1 

 100  100,000 100% 
 
Independent auditor 
PKF were appointed as independent auditor for the year ended 31 March 2023 and it is proposed 
that they be re-appointed for the year ending 31 March 2024. 
 
 

 

 
PIYUSH LOYA 
MANAGER       
16 May 2023 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  

 

To the Shareholders of KAYA SKIN MEDICAL CENTER LLC 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
 

Opinion  
We have audited the financial statements of KAYA SKIN MEDICAL CENTER LLC (the “Company”), 
which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2023, and the statement of 
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of 
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of 
significant accounting policies.   
 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial 
position of the Company as at 31 March 2023, and of its financial performance and its cash flows 
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs). 
 

Basis for Opinion  
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the 
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.  We are independent of the Company in 
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for 
Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to 
our audit of the financial statements in the United Arab Emirates (“UAE”), and we have fulfilled our 
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. 
  

Other Information 
Management is responsible for the other information. Other information comprises the Manager’s 
report as required by the UAE Federal Law No. (32) of 2021, which we obtained prior to the date of 
this auditor’s report. The other information does not include the financial statements and our 
auditor’s report thereon. 
 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we 
obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we concluded that there is a material 
misstatement of the other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to 
report in this regard. 

continued… 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  
(continued) 

 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair 
view in accordance with IFRSs, and for their compliance with the applicable provisions of the UAE 
Federal Decree Law No. (32) of 2021, and for such internal control as management determines is 
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  
 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the 
Company or to cease operations or has no realistic alternative but to do so.  
 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting 
process. 
 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements  
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 
 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:  
 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, 
or the override of internal control. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management.  

continued… 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  
(continued) 

 
 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required 
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements 
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the 
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or 
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions 
and events in a manner that gives a true and fair view.  

 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.   
 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
Further, as required by the UAE Federal Law No. (32) of 2021, we report that: 

i) we have obtained all the information we considered necessary for the purpose of our audit; 

ii) the financial statements have been prepared and comply, in all material respects, with the 
applicable provisions of the UAE Federal Law No. (32) of 2021;   

iii) the Company has maintained proper books of account; 

iv) the financial information included in the Manager’s report is consistent with the books of 
account of the Company;  

v) the Company has not purchased or invested in shares during the financial year ended 
31 March 2023; 

vi) note 6 to the financial statements reflects material related party transactions and balances, and 
the terms under which they were conducted;  

vii) the Company has not made any social contributions during the financial year ended 
31 March 2023; and 

 
 

continued… 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  
(continued) 

 

viii) based on the information that has been made available to us, nothing has come to our 
attention which causes us to believe that the Company has contravened during the financial 
year ended 31 March 2023 any of the applicable provisions of the U.A.E. Federal Decree-Law 
No. (32) of 2021 or of its Memorandum and Articles of Association which would materially 
affect its activities or its financial position as at 31 March 2023 and there are no penalties 
imposed on the Company. 

 

For PKF 
 
 
 
 
Saranga Lalwani 
Partner 
Registration no. 5468 
Dubai 
United Arab Emirates 
16 May 2023  
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KAYA SKIN MEDICAL CENTER LLC 
 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
AS AT 31 MARCH 2023 

 
 
 

 
 Notes 31.3.2023 
  AED 
   
ASSETS   
Current assets   
Due from related parties 6 100,000 
Total assets  100,000 
   
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES   
Equity    
Share capital 7 100,000 
Accumulated losses  (17,000) 
  83,000 
   
Current liabilities   
Accruals 8 17,000 
Total liabilities  17,000 
Total equity and liabilities  100,000 
 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements. 
The report of the independent auditor is set forth on pages 2 to 5. 
 
Approved and authorised for issue by the shareholders on 16 May 2023 and signed on their 
behalf by the manager, Mr. Piyush Loya. 
  
For KAYA SKIN MEDICAL CENTER LLC 
 
 
 
 
 
PIYUSH LOYA  
MANAGER 
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KAYA SKIN MEDICAL CENTER LLC 
 
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 

 
 
 

 
 Note 1.4.2022 

to 
31.3.2023 

  AED 
   
   
Revenue  -- 
   
General and administrative expenses 10 (17,000) 
   
LOSS FOR THE YEAR  (17,000) 
   
Other comprehensive income:   
   
Other comprehensive income for the year  -- 
   
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR  (17,000) 
 
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements. 
The report of the independent auditor is set forth on pages 2 to 5. 
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KAYA SKIN MEDICAL CENTER LLC 
 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 

 
 
 

  
 Share  

capital 
 Accumulated 

losses 
 Total 

(Note 12) 
 AED  AED  AED 
    
Issue of share capital 100,000 -- 100,000 
    
Total comprehensive income for the year -- (17,000) (17,000) 
    
Balance at 31 March 2023 100,000 (17,000) 83,000 

  
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements. 
The report of the independent auditor is set forth on pages 2 to 5. 
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KAYA SKIN MEDICAL CENTER LLC 
 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 

 
 
 

 
 1.4.2022 

to 
31.3.2023 

 AED 
  
Cash flows from operating activities  
Loss for the year (17,000) 
  

  Changes in:  
 Accruals 17,000 

Net cash from operating activities -- 
  
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents -- 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year -- 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year -- 

 
Non-cash financing activities include:  
Issue of share capital 100,000 
 
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements. 
The report of the independent auditor is set forth on pages 2 to 5.
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1. LEGAL STATUS AND BUSINESS ACTIVITY 
a) KAYA SKIN MEDICAL CENTER LLC (the “Company”) a limited liability company registered in 

Fujairah, United Arab Emirates, incorporated in accordance with the provision of Article 218 of 
the UAE Commercial Companies Law No. 8 of 1984 as amended (repealed by UAE Federal Law 
No. (2) of 2015 and further repealed by UAE Federal Law No. (32) of 2021). The registered 
office is P.O. Box 3083, Hamad Bin Abdulla street, Fujairah, U.A.E. The Company’s licensed 
activities are dermatology and venerology clinic, laser complexion care and medical complex. 

  
b) The Company was initially registered as branch of a free zone company with license no. 61962 

issued by Fujairah Municipality, Fujairah on 6 September 2006 and subsequently on 17 March 
2023, the legal form changed from branch of a free zone company to a limited liability 
company under the U.A.E Federal Law No. (32) of 2021. The Company has been managed and 
controlled by the parent company and therefore the assets, liabilities and the results of 
operations of the Company’s business activities have been reported in the financial statements 
of the parent company. However, the management has decided to present standalone financial 
statements of the Company for the financial year commencing 1 April 2022 and accordingly no 
comparative information is presented in these financial statements (note 12). 

  
c) The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Kaya Middle East FZE (the “parent company”), a 

Free Zone Establishment with limited liability registered in United Arab Emirates. The ultimate 
parent company is Kaya Limited (the “ultimate parent company”), a company registered in 
India which is listed on Bombay Stock Exchange and National Stock Exchange. 

  
2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 
a) Statement of compliance 
 The financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting 

Standards issued or adopted by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and which 
are effective for accounting year beginning 1 April 2022, and the requirements of UAE Federal 
Law No. (32) of 2021. 

  
b) Basis of measurement 
 The financial statements are prepared using historical cost. 
  
 Historical cost is based on the fair value of the consideration given to acquire the asset or cash 

or cash equivalents expected to be paid to satisfy the liability. 
  
 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 

orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. 
  

 c) Going concern 
 The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis.  
  
 When preparing the financial statements, management makes an assessment of the 

Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Financial statements are prepared on a going 
concern basis unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.  
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    d) Adoption of new International Financial Reporting Standards 
 Standards, amendments, improvements and interpretations effective for the current period 

 The following amendments, improvements and interpretations which became effective for 
current period, did not have any significant impact on the Company’s financial statements: 

  
  Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before intended use – Amendments to IAS 1 

  Reference to the Conceptual Framework – Amendments to IFRS 3 

  Onerous Contracts – Cost of Fulfilling a Contract Amendments to IAS 37 

  Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018–2020 

 - IFRS 9 Financial Instruments 

 - IFRS 16 Leases 

 - IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards 

 - IAS 41 Agriculture 
 

 New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective and not early adopted 
 The following amendments and improvements that are assessed by management as likely to 

have an impact on the financial statements, have been issued by the IASB prior to the date the 
financial statements were authorised for issue, but have not been applied in these financial 
statements as their effective dates of adoption are for future accounting periods. 

  
  Amendments to IAS 1 – Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current (1 January 

2023) 

 Disclosure of Accounting Policies – Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2 (1 
January 2023) 

  Definition of Accounting Estimates – Amendments to IAS 8 (1 January 2023) 

  
e) Functional and presentation currency 
 The financial statements are presented in U.A.E. Dirhams (“AED”), which is also the Company’s 

functional currency. 
  
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 The significant accounting policies adopted, and which have been consistently applied, are as 

follows: 
  

  a) Statutory reserve 
 In accordance with the U.A.E. Federal Law No. 32 of 2021 on Commercial Companies, the 

Company is required to establish a statutory reserve by appropriation of 5% (previous year 
10% as per UAE Federal Law No. (2) of 2015) of net profit until the reserve equals 50% of the 
share capital. The partners may resolve to discontinue such deduction when the reserve 
totals 50% of the paid-up share capital. The reserve is not available for distribution except as 
provided in the Federal Law. During the year, no transfer to statutory reserve has been made 
on account of loss incurred by the Company. 
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  b) Revenue recognition 
 The Company’s licensed activities are dermatology and venerology clinic, laser complexion 

care and medical complex.  
  
 Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when the control of the goods or 

services is transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which 
the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. 

  
 The Company recognises revenue from contracts with customers based on a five-step model 

as set out in IFRS 15: 
  

 1. Identify the contracts with customers: A contract is defined as an agreement between two 
or more parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the criteria for 
every contract that must be met. 

 2. Identify the performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a 
promise in a contract with a customer to transfer a good or service to the customer. 

 3. Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to 
which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or 
services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties. 

 4. Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a 
contract that has more than one performance obligation, the Company will allocate the 
transaction price to each performance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount 
of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for satisfying 
each performance obligation. 

 5. Recognise revenue when (or as) the Company satisfies a performance obligation at a 
point in time or over time. 

 
 The Company satisfies a performance obligation and recognises revenue over time, if one of 

the following criteria is met: 
  
  The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the 

Company’s performance as the Company performs; or 
  The Company’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as 

the asset is created or enhanced; or 
  The Company’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the 

Company and the Company has an enforceable right to payment for performance 
completed to date. 

  
 The Company is required to assess each of its contracts with customers to determine whether 

performance obligations are satisfied over time or at a point in time in order to determine the 
appropriate method of recognising revenue.  
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 For performance obligations where one of the above conditions are not met, revenue is 
recognised at the point in time at which performance obligation is satisfied. 

  
c) Foreign currency transactions 
 Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into US Dollars at the rate of exchange ruling 

on the date of the transactions. 
  
 Monetary assets and liabilities expressed in foreign currencies are translated into US Dollars at 

the rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date. 
  

 Gains or losses resulting from foreign currency transactions are taken to the statement of 
profit or loss. 

 
d) Provisions 
 A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as 

a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to 
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

  
 The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle 

the present obligation at the reporting date taking into account the risks and uncertainties 
surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flow estimated to 
settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows. 

  
 When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be 

recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain 
that reimbursement will be received and the amount of receivable can be measured reliably. 

 

  e) Value added tax 
 As per the Federal Decree-Law No. (08) of 2017, Value Added Tax (VAT), needs to be charged at 

5% standard rate or 0% (as the case may be) on every taxable supply and deemed supply made 
by the taxable person. The Company does not have any output taxable supplies of goods or 
services. As VAT register is not mandatory in UAE for such an entity, the Company has opted 
not to register under VAT. 

  
  f) Current versus non-current classification 

 The Company presents assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position based on 
current/non-current classification. An asset is current when it is:  

  
  Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle. 

 Held primarily for the purpose of trading.  

 Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or;  

 Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability 
for at least twelve months after the reporting period.  
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 All other assets are classified as non-current. 
  

 A liability is current when: 
  It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle.  

 It is held primarily for the purpose of trading.  

 It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or; 

 There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve 
months after the reporting period. 

  
 All other liabilities are classified as non-current. 

 
  g) Financial instruments 
 Classification  
 On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortised cost; debt 

investment at fair value through other comprehensive income, equity investment at fair value 
through other comprehensive income; or fair value through profit or loss. 

  
 The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial assets’ 

contractual cash flow characteristics and the Company’s business model for managing them. 
  
 In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value 

through other comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are “solely 
payments of principal and interest” on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is 
performed at an instrumental level. 

 
 The Company’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its 

financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash 
flows will result from collecting contractual cashflows, selling the financial assets, or both. 

  
 Financial liabilities are classified as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or at 

amortised cost. The Company determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial 
recognition. 

  
 Recognition 
 Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when, and only when, the Company 

becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Regular purchases and sales 
of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Company commits to 
purchase or sell the asset. 
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 Derecognition 
 Financial assets are de-recognised when, and only when,  

 The contractual rights to receive cash flows expire or  
 The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has 

assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a 
third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either  

  
 (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,  

or  
(b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and 

rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.  
 

 Financial liabilities are de-recognised when, and only when, they are extinguished i.e. when 
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. 

  
 Measurement 
 A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component that 

is initially measured at the transaction price) is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item 
not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its 
acquisition. Transactions costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are 
expensed in profit or loss.   

  
 The following accounting policies apply to the subsequent measurement of financial assets 

and liabilities. 
  
 Financial assets 

 Financial assets at amortised cost 
 Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised 

cost less impairment loss and deferred income, if any (except for those assets that are 
designated as at fair value through other comprehensive income on initial recognition) using 
the effective interest method. 

  
 1. the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to 

collect contractual cash flows; and  
 2. the contractual terms of the instrument give rise to cash flows on specified dates that are 

solely payments of principal and profit on the principal amount outstanding. 
  
 All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value. 
  
 Foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or 

loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss. 
  
 The financial assets at amortised cost comprise of due from related parties. 
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 Financial liabilities 
 All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 

method or at fair value through profit or loss. 
  
 Financial liabilities at amortised cost 
 Financial liabilities at amortised cost comprise of accruals. 
  
 Impairment of financial assets 

 The Company recognises an allowance for expected credit losses for all debt instruments not 
held at fair value through profit or loss. Expected credit losses are based on the difference 
between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows 
that the Company expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective 
interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or 
other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms. 

  
 Loss allowances are measured on either of the following basis: 
  
  12-month expected credit losses: expected credit losses that result from possible default 

events within 12 months after the reporting date; and  

 Lifetime expected credit losses: expected credit losses that result from all possible default 
events over the expected life of a financial instrument. 

  
 The Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit 

losses, except for the following which are measured as 12-month expected credit losses: 
  
 - Due from related parties for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the 

expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial 
recognition. 

  
 When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since 

initial recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers 
reasonable and supportive information that is relevant and available without undue cost or 
effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the 
Company’s historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward 
looking information. 

  
 The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is 

more than 30 days past due. 
  
 The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when: 
  
  The borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without 

recourse by the Company to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or 
 The financial asset is more than 365 days past due. 
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 The maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum 
contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk. 

  
 At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised 

cost are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that 
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have 
occurred. 

  
 Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross 

carrying amount of the asset.  
 
 Offsetting 
 Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of 

financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts 
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability 
simultaneously. 

  
 Equity 
 Share capital is recorded at the value of proceeds received towards interest in share capital of 

the Company. 
  
h) Fair value measurement 
 The Company discloses the fair value of financial instruments measured at amortised cost.  
  
 The fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in 

an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value 
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the 
liability takes place either: 

  

  In the principal market for the asset or liability; or 
 In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. 

  
 The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using assumptions that the market 

participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that the market participants 
act in their best economic interests. 

  
4 SIGNIFICANT JUDGMENTS EMPLOYED IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 The significant judgments made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant 

effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements are as follows: 
  
 Classification of financial assets 
 The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s 

contractual cash flow characteristics and the Company’s business model for managing them. 
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 Impairment 
 The Company applies expected credit loss model to measure loss allowance in case of financial 

assets on the basis of 12-month expected credit losses or lifetime expected credit losses 
depending on credit risk characteristics and how changes in economic factors affect expected 
credit losses, which are determined on a probability-weighted basis. 

  
5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY  
 Key assumptions made concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty 

at the reporting date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the 
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are as follows: 

  
 Impairment of financial assets 
 The loss allowance for financial assets are based on assumptions about the risk of default and 

expected loss rates. The management uses judgement in making these assumptions and 
selecting the inputs to the impairment calculations based on the past history, existing market 
conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period. Details of 
the key assumptions and inputs used are disclosed in note 3(g). 

  
6. RELATED PARTIES  
 The Company enters into transactions with entities that fall within the definition of a related 

party as contained in International Accounting Standard 24. The management considers such 
transactions to be in the normal course of business and at prices determined by the 
management. 

  

 Related parties comprise shareholders, companies under common ownership and/or common 
management control and manager. 

  
 At the reporting date, significant balance with the shareholders was as follows. 
 

   31.3.2023 
   AED 
    
 Due from related parties(a)  100,000 

 

(a) Represents due from shareholders against the share capital of the Company. 
  
 Balance is unsecured and is expected to be settled in cash. Repayment and other terms are set 

out in note 11. 
  
 There are no significant transactions with related parties during the year.  
  
 Certain staff and administrative related services are availed from a related party free of cost. 
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  31.3.2023 
  AED 
   
7. SHARE CAPITAL  
 Issued and paid up:  
 100 shares of AED 1,000 each  100,000 
 

 During the year, vide amendment to the memorandum of association dated 17 March 2023, 1% 
of the ownership in the Company has been transferred from Kaya Middle East FZE to Mr. Adnan 
Ali Abdullah Muhammad. Accordingly, the shareholders at 31 March 2023 and their interests as 
at that date in the share capital were as follows: 

 
Name  At 31 March 2023 

No. of  
shares 

 
AED 

% 
holding 

Kaya Middle East FZE 99  99,000 99 
  Adnan Ali Abdullah Muhammad  1  1,000 1 
 100  100,000 100% 

 
  31.3.2023 
  AED 
8. ACCRUALS  
 Accruals 17,000 

 
 The entire accruals are due for payment within one year from the reporting date. 
    
9. MANAGEMENT OF CAPITAL   
 The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to ensure that the Company continues as 

a going concern and to provide the shareholders with a rate of return on its investment 
commensurate with the level of risk assumed. 

  
 Capital comprises equity funds as presented in the statement of financial position. Debt 

comprises total amounts owed by the Company net of cash and cash equivalents. 
  
 The Company is subject to externally imposed capital requirements as per provisions of Article 

308 of the UAE Federal Law No. (32) of 2021. The Company has complied with all the capital 
requirements to which it is subject. 

  
 Funds generated from internal accruals together with funds received from a related party are 

retained in the business, according to the business requirements and maintain capital at 
desired levels. 
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  1.4.2022 

to 
31.3.2023 

  AED 
10. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES  
 Other expenses 17,000 

  
11. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT 
 Financial instruments 
 Classification and fair values 
 The net carrying amounts as at the reporting date of financial assets and financial liabilities are 

as follows: 
 

  
At amortised 

cost 
   
  31.3.2023 
  AED 

 Financial assets  
 Due from related parties 100,000 

   
 Financial liabilities  
 Accruals 17,000 
 
 Fair vale measurement and disclosures 
 The management assesses the fair values of all its financial assets and financial liabilities at 

each reporting date. 
  

 The fair values of due from related parties and accruals approximate their carrying amounts 
largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments. 

  
 Financial risk management 
 Risk management objectives 
 Risk is inherent in the Company’s activities but is managed through a process of ongoing 

identification, measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. This 
process of risk management is critical to the Company’s continuing profitability. The Company’s 
risk management focusses on actively securing short to medium term cash flows by minimising 
the exposure to financial markets. 

  
 The primary risks to which the business is exposed which are unchanged from the previous year 

comprise credit risks, liquidity risks and market risks (including currency risks and cash flow 
interest rate risks and fair value interest rate risks). 
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 The management of the Company reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks 
which are summarised below: 

  
 Credit risk 
 Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation 

and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. 
  
 Credit risk is managed by assessing the creditworthiness of potential customers and the 

potential for exposure to the market in which they operate, combined with regular monitoring 
and follow-up. 

 Financial assets that potentially expose the Company to concentrations of credit risk comprise 
principally due from related parties. 

  
 The management assesses the credit risk arising from due from related parties taking into 

account their financial position, past experience and other factors. Based on the assessment 
individual risk limits are determined. 

  
 Based on the assessment, the management believes that no impairment provision is required 

under IFRS 9. 
  
 Liquidity risk 
 Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may encounter difficulty in meeting financial 

obligations due to shortage of funds. The Company's exposure to liquidity risk arises primarily 
from mismatches of the maturities of financial assets and financial liabilities. 

  

 The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will 
always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed 
conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company's   
reputation. The Company manages liquidity risk by monitoring forecast and actual cash flows 
and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. The Concern limits its 
liquidity risk by ensuring adequate arrangements with its related parties. 

  
 The table below summarises the maturities of the Company’s undiscounted financial liabilities 

at the reporting date, based on contractual payment dates and current market interest rates. 
   
  Less than one year 
  31.3.2023 
  AED 
 Accruals 17,000 
  
 Market risk 
 Market risk is the risk that the changes in market prices, such as foreign currency exchange 

rates, interest rates and prices, will affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of 
financial instrument. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control 
market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the returns. 
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 Currency risk 
 Currency risk is the risk that the values of financial instruments will fluctuate because of 

changes in foreign exchange rates. 
  
 There are no significant currency risks as substantially all financial assets and financial liabilities 

are denominated in U.A.E. Dirhams or US Dollars to which the Dirham is fixed. 
  
 Interest rate risk 
 Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate because of 

changes in market interest rates. 
  
 The Company is not exposed to any significant interest rate risks. 
  
12. COMPARATIVE INFORMATION 
 These are the first set of financial statements prepared by the management for the Company 

[Note 1(b)] and, accordingly, no comparative information is presented. 
  
13. CORPORATE TAX 
 On 9 December 2022, the UAE Ministry of Finance issued the Federal Decree-Law No. (47) of 

2022 introducing Corporate Tax, effective for financial years commencing on or after 1 June 
2023. The rate of corporate tax is 9% on the taxable income exceeding AED 375,000 and 0% for 
qualifying free zone companies on their qualifying income, subject to meeting specified 
conditions. There is no impact of this law on the financial statements of the Company for the 
year ended 31 March 2023.  Management will assess the implications of this Federal Corporate 
Tax for the Company in due course. 

 
For KAYA SKIN MEDICAL CENTER LLC 
 
 
 
 
PIYUSH LOYA  
MANAGER   
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KAYA TRADING – SINGLE OWNER L.L.C 

MANAGERS’ REPORT 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 
 
The managers submit their report and financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023. 
We approve the financial statements and confirm that we are responsible for these, including 
selecting the accounting policies and making the judgments underlying them. We confirm that we 
have made available all relevant accounting records and information for their compilation. 
 
Results and dividends 
The loss for the year amounted to AED 17,000. The managers do not recommend any dividends for 
the year ended 31 March 2023. 
 
Review of the business 
The Company’s licensed activities are trading in perfumes & cosmetics, beauty and personal care 
requisites.  
 
Legal and regulatory requirements 
The Company has complied with the applicable provisions of the UAE Federal Law No. (32) of 2021. 
The Company was initially registered as a sole establishment in November 2005 and on 14 February 
2023, the legal form changed to a single owner limited liability company under the U.A.E. Federal 
Law No. (32) of 2021. 
 
Events since the end of the year 
There are no significant events since the end of the year. 
 
Shareholder and interest in share capital 
During the year, vide amendments to the memorandum of association dated 14 February 2023, the 
ownership of the sole establishment has been transferred from Mr. Ahmed Khalil Mohammad 
Samea Almutawa to Kaya Middle East FZE. Accordingly, the shareholder at 31 March 2023 and its 
interest as at that date in the share capital was as follows: 
 

Name  At 31 March 2023 
No. of  
shares 

 
AED 

% 
holding 

Kaya Middle East FZE 100  100,000 100 
 100  100,000 100% 
 
Independent auditor 
PKF were appointed as independent auditor for the year ended 31 March 2023 and it is proposed 
that they be re-appointed for the year ending 31 March 2024. 
 

 

RAJIV SURI     PIYUSH LOYA 
MANAGER      MANAGER       
16 May 2023 



 

Page 2 of 22 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  

To the Shareholder of KAYA TRADING – SINGLE OWNER L.L.C 
 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
 

Opinion  
We have audited the financial statements of KAYA TRADING – SINGLE OWNER L.L.C (the 
“Company”), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2023, and the 
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and 
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a 
summary of significant accounting policies.   
 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial 
position of the Company as at 31 March 2023, and of its financial performance and its cash flows 
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs). 
 

Basis for Opinion  
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the 
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.  We are independent of the Company in 
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for 
Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to 
our audit of the financial statements in the United Arab Emirates (“UAE”), and we have fulfilled our 
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. 
 
Other Information 
Management is responsible for the other information. Other information comprises the Managers’ 
report as required by the UAE Federal Law No. (32) of 2021, which we obtained prior to the date of 
this auditor’s report. The other information does not include the financial statements and our 
auditor’s report thereon. 
 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
 
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we 
obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we concluded that there is a material 
misstatement of the other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to 
report in this regard. 

continued… 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  
(continued) 

 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair 
view in accordance with IFRSs, and for their compliance with the applicable provisions of the UAE 
Federal Decree Law No. (32) of 2021, and for such internal control as management determines is 
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  
 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the 
Company or to cease operations or has no realistic alternative but to do so.  
 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting 
process. 
 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements  
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 
 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:  
 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, 
or the override of internal control. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management.  

continued… 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  
(continued) 

 
 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required 
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements 
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the 
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or 
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions 
and events in a manner that gives a true and fair view.  

 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.   
 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
Further, as required by the UAE Federal Law No. (32) of 2021, we report that: 

i) we have obtained all the information we considered necessary for the purpose of our audit; 

ii) the financial statements have been prepared and comply, in all material respects, with the 
applicable provisions of the UAE Federal Law No. (32) of 2021;   

iii) the Company has maintained proper books of account; 

iv) the financial information included in the Managers’ report is consistent with the books of 
account of the Company;  

v) the Company has not purchased or invested in shares during the financial year ended 
31 March 2023; 

vi) note 6 to the financial statements reflects material related party transactions and balances, and 
the terms under which they were conducted;  

vii) the Company has not made any social contributions during the financial year ended 
31 March 2023; and 

 

continued… 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  
(continued) 

 

viii) based on the information that has been made available to us, nothing has come to our 
attention which causes us to believe that the Company has contravened during the financial 
year ended 31 March 2023 any of the applicable provisions of the U.A.E. Federal Decree-Law 
No. (32) of 2021 or of its Memorandum and Articles of Association which would materially 
affect its activities or its financial position as at 31 March 2023 and there are no penalties 
imposed on the Company. 

 

For PKF 
 
 
 
 
Saranga Lalwani 
Partner 
Registration no. 5468 
Dubai 
United Arab Emirates 
16 May 2023  
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KAYA TRADING – SINGLE OWNER L.L.C 
 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
AS AT 31 MARCH 2023 

 
 
 

 
 Notes 31.3.2023 
  AED 
   
ASSETS   
Current assets   
Due from a related party 6 100,000 
Total assets  100,000 
   
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES   
Equity    
Share capital 7 100,000 
Accumulated losses  (17,000) 
  83,000 
   
Current liabilities   
Accruals 8 17,000 
Total liabilities  17,000 
Total equity and liabilities  100,000 
 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements. 
The report of the independent auditor is set forth on pages 2 to 5. 
 
Approved and authorised for issue by the shareholder on 16 May 2023 and signed on its behalf 
by the managers, Mr. Rajiv Suri and Mr. Piyush Loya. 
  
For KAYA TRADING – SINGLE OWNER L.L.C 
 

 
 
RAJIV SURI     PIYUSH LOYA 
MANAGER     MANAGER 
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KAYA TRADING – SINGLE OWNER L.L.C 
 
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 

 
 
 

 
 Note 1.4.2022 

 to 
31.3.2023 

  AED 
   
   
Revenue  -- 
   
General and administrative expenses 10 (17,000) 
   
LOSS FOR THE YEAR  (17,000) 
   
Other comprehensive income:   
   
Other comprehensive income for the year  -- 
   
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR  (17,000) 
 
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements. 
The report of the independent auditor is set forth on pages 2 to 5. 
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KAYA TRADING – SINGLE OWNER L.L.C 
 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 

 
 
 

  
 Share  

capital 
 Accumulated 

losses 
 Total 

(Note 12) 
 AED  AED  AED 
    
Issue of share capital 100,000 -- 100,000 
    
Total comprehensive income for the year -- (17,000) (17,000) 
    
Balance at 31 March 2023 100,000 (17,000) 83,000 

  
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements. 
The report of the independent auditor is set forth on pages 2 to 5. 
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KAYA TRADING – SINGLE OWNER L.L.C 
 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 

 
 
 

 
 1.4.2022 

 to 
31.3.2023 

 AED 
  
Cash flows from operating activities  
Loss for the year (17,000) 
  

  Changes in:  
 Accruals 17,000 

Net cash from operating activities -- 
  
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents -- 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year -- 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year -- 

 
Non-cash financing activities include:  
Issue of share capital 100,000 
 
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements. 
The report of the independent auditor is set forth on pages 2 to 5.
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1. LEGAL STATUS AND BUSINESS ACTIVITY 
a) KAYA TRADING – SINGLE OWNER L.L.C (the “Company”) a limited liability company registered 

in Dubai, United Arab Emirates, incorporated in accordance with the provision of Article 218 of 
the UAE Commercial Companies Law No. 8 of 1984 as amended (repealed by UAE Federal Law 
No. (2) of 2015 and further repealed by UAE Federal Law No. (32) of 2021). The registered 
office is P.O. Box 121538, Dubai, U.A.E. The Company’s licensed activities are trading in 
perfumes & cosmetics, beauty and personal care requisites. 

  

b) The Company was initially registered as a sole establishment with license no. 575094 issued by 
the Department of Economy and Tourism, Dubai on 20 November 2005 and subsequently on 
14 February 2023, the legal form changed from sole establishment to a single owner limited 
liability company under the U.A.E Federal Law No.32 of 2021. The Company has been managed 
and controlled by the parent company and therefore the assets, liabilities and the results of 
operations of the Company’s business activities have been reported in the financial statements 
of the parent company. However, the management has decided to present standalone financial 
statements of the Company for the financial year commencing 1 April 2022 and accordingly no 
comparative information is presented in these financial statements (note 12). 

  
c) The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Kaya Middle East FZE (the “parent company”), a 

Free Zone Establishment with limited liability registered in United Arab Emirates. The ultimate 
parent company is Kaya Limited (the “ultimate parent company”), a company registered in 
India which is listed on Bombay Stock Exchange and National Stock Exchange. 

  
2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 
a) Statement of compliance 
 The financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting 

Standards issued or adopted by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and which 
are effective for accounting year beginning 1 April 2022, and the requirements of UAE Federal 
Law No. (32) of 2021. 

  
b) Basis of measurement 
 The financial statements are prepared using historical cost. 
  
 Historical cost is based on the fair value of the consideration given to acquire the asset or cash 

or cash equivalents expected to be paid to satisfy the liability. 
  
 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 

orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. 
  

 c) Going concern 
 The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis.  
  
 When preparing the financial statements, management makes an assessment of the 

Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Financial statements are prepared on a going 
concern basis unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
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 d) Adoption of new International Financial Reporting Standards 
 Standards, amendments, improvements and interpretations effective for the current period 

 The following amendments, improvements and interpretations which became effective for 
current period, did not have any significant impact on the Company’s financial statements: 

  
  Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before intended use – Amendments to IAS 1 

  Reference to the Conceptual Framework – Amendments to IFRS 3 

  Onerous Contracts – Cost of Fulfilling a Contract Amendments to IAS 37 

  Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018–2020 

 - IFRS 9 Financial Instruments 

 - IFRS 16 Leases 

 - IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards 

 - IAS 41 Agriculture 
 

 New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective and not early adopted 
 The following amendments and improvements that are assessed by management as likely to 

have an impact on the financial statements, have been issued by the IASB prior to the date the 
financial statements were authorised for issue, but have not been applied in these financial 
statements as their effective dates of adoption are for future accounting periods. 

  

  Amendments to IAS 1 – Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current (1 January 
2023) 

 Disclosure of Accounting Policies – Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2 (1 
January 2023) 

  Definition of Accounting Estimates – Amendments to IAS 8 (1 January 2023) 
  

e) Functional and presentation currency 
 The financial statements are presented in U.A.E. Dirhams (“AED”), which is also the Company’s 

functional currency. 
  

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 The significant accounting policies adopted, and which have been consistently applied, are as 

follows: 
  

  a) Statutory reserve 
 In accordance with the U.A.E. Federal Law No. 32 of 2021 on Commercial Companies, the 

Company is required to establish a statutory reserve by appropriation of 5% (previous year 
10% as per UAE Federal Law No. (2) of 2015) of net profit until the reserve equals 50% of the 
share capital. The partners may resolve to discontinue such deduction when the reserve 
totals 50% of the paid-up share capital. The reserve is not available for distribution except as 
provided in the Federal Law. During the year, no transfer to statutory reserve has been made 
on account of loss incurred by the Company. 
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  b) Revenue recognition 
 The Company’s licensed activities are trading in perfumes & cosmetics, beauty and personal 

care requisites.  
  
 Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when the control of the goods or 

services is transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which 
the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. 

  
 The Company recognises revenue from contracts with customers based on a five-step model 

as set out in IFRS 15: 
  

 1. Identify the contracts with customers: A contract is defined as an agreement between two 
or more parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the criteria for 
every contract that must be met. 

 2. Identify the performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a 
promise in a contract with a customer to transfer a good or service to the customer. 

 3. Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to 
which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or 
services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties. 

 4. Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a 
contract that has more than one performance obligation, the Company will allocate the 
transaction price to each performance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount 
of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for satisfying 
each performance obligation. 

 5. Recognise revenue when (or as) the Company satisfies a performance obligation at a 
point in time or over time. 

 
 The Company satisfies a performance obligation and recognises revenue over time, if one of 

the following criteria is met: 
  The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the 

Company’s performance as the Company performs; or 
  The Company’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as 

the asset is created or enhanced; or 
  The Company’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the 

Company and the Company has an enforceable right to payment for performance 
completed to date. 

  
 The Company is required to assess each of its contracts with customers to determine whether 

performance obligations are satisfied over time or at a point in time in order to determine the 
appropriate method of recognising revenue.  

  
 For performance obligations where one of the above conditions are not met, revenue is 

recognised at the point in time at which performance obligation is satisfied. 
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c) Foreign currency transactions 
 Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into US Dollars at the rate of exchange ruling 

on the date of the transactions. 
  
 Monetary assets and liabilities expressed in foreign currencies are translated into US Dollars at 

the rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date. 
  

 Gains or losses resulting from foreign currency transactions are taken to the statement of 
profit or loss. 

 
d) Provisions 
 A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as 

a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to 
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

  
 The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle 

the present obligation at the reporting date taking into account the risks and uncertainties 
surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flow estimated to 
settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows. 

  
 When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be 

recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain 
that reimbursement will be received and the amount of receivable can be measured reliably. 

 

  e) Value added tax 
 As per the Federal Decree-Law No. (08) of 2017, Value Added Tax (VAT), needs to be charged at 

5% standard rate or 0% (as the case may be) on every taxable supply and deemed supply made 
by the taxable person. The Company does not have any output taxable supplies of goods or 
services. As VAT register is not mandatory in UAE for such an entity, the Company has opted 
not to register under VAT. 

  
  f) Current versus non-current classification 

 The Company presents assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position based on 
current/non-current classification. An asset is current when it is:  

  Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle. 

 Held primarily for the purpose of trading.  

 Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or;  

 Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability 
for at least twelve months after the reporting period.  

  

 All other assets are classified as non-current. 
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 A liability is current when: 
  It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle.  

 It is held primarily for the purpose of trading.  

 It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or; 

 There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve 
months after the reporting period. 

  
 All other liabilities are classified as non-current. 

 
  g) Financial instruments 
 Classification  
 On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortised cost; debt 

investment at fair value through other comprehensive income, equity investment at fair value 
through other comprehensive income; or fair value through profit or loss. 

  
 The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial assets’ 

contractual cash flow characteristics and the Company’s business model for managing them. 
  
 In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value 

through other comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are “solely 
payments of principal and interest” on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is 
performed at an instrumental level. 

 
 The Company’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its 

financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash 
flows will result from collecting contractual cashflows, selling the financial assets, or both. 

  
 Financial liabilities are classified as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or at 

amortised cost. The Company determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial 
recognition. 

  

 Recognition 
 Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when, and only when, the Company 

becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Regular purchases and sales 
of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Company commits to 
purchase or sell the asset. 

  

 Derecognition 
 Financial assets are de-recognised when, and only when,  

 The contractual rights to receive cash flows expire or  
 The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has 

assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a 
third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either  
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 (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,  
or  

(b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and 
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.  

 
 Financial liabilities are de-recognised when, and only when, they are extinguished i.e. when 

obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. 
  

 Measurement 
 A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component that 

is initially measured at the transaction price) is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item 
not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its 
acquisition. Transactions costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are 
expensed in profit or loss.   

  
 The following accounting policies apply to the subsequent measurement of financial assets 

and liabilities. 
  
 Financial assets 

 Financial assets at amortised cost 
 Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised 

cost less impairment loss and deferred income, if any (except for those assets that are 
designated as at fair value through other comprehensive income on initial recognition) using 
the effective interest method. 

  
 1. the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to 

collect contractual cash flows; and  
 2. the contractual terms of the instrument give rise to cash flows on specified dates that are 

solely payments of principal and profit on the principal amount outstanding. 
  
 All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value. 
  
 Foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or 

loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss. 
  
 The financial assets at amortised cost comprise of due from a related party. 
  
 Financial liabilities 
 All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 

method or at fair value through profit or loss. 
  
 Financial liabilities at amortised cost 
 Financial liabilities at amortised cost comprise of accruals. 
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 Impairment of financial assets 
 The Company recognises an allowance for expected credit losses for all debt instruments not 

held at fair value through profit or loss. Expected credit losses are based on the difference 
between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows 
that the Company expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective 
interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or 
other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms. 

  
 Loss allowances are measured on either of the following basis: 
  
  12-month expected credit losses: expected credit losses that result from possible default 

events within 12 months after the reporting date; and  

 Lifetime expected credit losses: expected credit losses that result from all possible default 
events over the expected life of a financial instrument. 

  
 The Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit 

losses, except for the following which are measured as 12-month expected credit losses: 
  
 - Due from a related party for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the 

expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial 
recognition. 

  
 When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since 

initial recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers 
reasonable and supportive information that is relevant and available without undue cost or 
effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the 
Company’s historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward 
looking information. 

  
 The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is 

more than 30 days past due. 
  
 The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when: 
  
  The borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without 

recourse by the Company to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or 
 The financial asset is more than 365 days past due. 

  

 The maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum 
contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk. 
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 At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised 
cost are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that 
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have 
occurred. 

  
 Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross 

carrying amount of the asset.  
 
 Offsetting 
 Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of 

financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts 
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability 
simultaneously. 

  
 Equity 
 Share capital is recorded at the value of proceeds received towards interest in share capital of 

the Company. 
  
h) Fair value measurement 
 The Company discloses the fair value of financial instruments measured at amortised cost.  
  
 The fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in 

an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value 
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the 
liability takes place either: 

  

  In the principal market for the asset or liability; or 
 In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. 

  
 The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using assumptions that the market 

participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that the market participants 
act in their best economic interests. 

  
4 SIGNIFICANT JUDGMENTS EMPLOYED IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 The significant judgments made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant 

effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements are as follows: 

  
 Classification of financial assets 
 The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s 

contractual cash flow characteristics and the Company’s business model for managing them. 
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 Impairment 
 The Company applies expected credit loss model to measure loss allowance in case of financial 

assets on the basis of 12-month expected credit losses or lifetime expected credit losses 
depending on credit risk characteristics and how changes in economic factors affect expected 
credit losses, which are determined on a probability-weighted basis. 

  
5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY  
 Key assumptions made concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty 

at the reporting date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the 
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are as follows: 

  
 Impairment of financial assets 
 The loss allowance for financial assets are based on assumptions about the risk of default and 

expected loss rates. The management uses judgement in making these assumptions and 
selecting the inputs to the impairment calculations based on the past history, existing market 
conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period. Details of 
the key assumptions and inputs used are disclosed in note 3(g). 

  
6. RELATED PARTIES  
 The Company enters into transactions with entities that fall within the definition of a related 

party as contained in International Accounting Standard 24. The management considers such 
transactions to be in the normal course of business and at prices determined by the 
management. 

  

 Related parties comprise shareholder, companies under common ownership and/or common 
management control and managers. 

  
 At the reporting date, significant balance with the shareholder was as follows. 
 

   31.3.2023 
   AED 
    
 Due from a related party(a)  100,000 

 

(a) Represents due from shareholder against the share capital of the Company. 
  
 Balance is unsecured and is expected to be settled in cash. Repayment and other terms are set 

out in note 11. 
  
 There are no significant transactions with related parties during the year. 
  
 Certain staff and administrative related services are availed from a related party free of cost. 
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  31.3.2023 
  AED 
7. SHARE CAPITAL  
 Issued and paid up:  
 100 shares of AED 1,000 each  100,000 
 

 
 

During the year, vide amendments to the memorandum of association dated 14 February 2023, 
the ownership of the sole establishment has been transferred from Mr. Ahmed Khalil 
Mohammad Samea Almutawa to Kaya Middle East FZE. Accordingly, the shareholder at 31 
March 2023 and its interest as at that date in the share capital was as follows: 

 
Name  At 31 March 2023 

No. of  
shares 

 
AED 

% 
holding 

Kaya Middle East FZE 100  100,000 100 
 100  100,000 100% 

 

  31.3.2023 
  AED 
8. ACCRUALS  
 Accruals 17,000 
 
 The entire accruals are due for payment within one year from the reporting date. 

    

9. MANAGEMENT OF CAPITAL   
 The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to ensure that the Company continues as 

a going concern and to provide the shareholder with a rate of return on its investment 
commensurate with the level of risk assumed. 

  

 Capital comprises equity funds as presented in the statement of financial position. Debt 
comprises total amounts owed by the Company net of cash and cash equivalents. 

  

 The Company is subject to externally imposed capital requirements as per provisions of Article 
308 of the UAE Federal Law No. (32) of 2021. The Company has complied with all the capital 
requirements to which it is subject. 

  

 Funds generated from internal accruals together with funds received from a related party are 
retained in the business, according to the business requirements and maintain capital at 
desired levels. 

    

  1.4.2022 
to 

31.3.2023 
  AED 
10. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES  
 Other expenses 17,000 
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11. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT 
 Financial instruments 
 Classification and fair values 
 The net carrying amounts as at the reporting date of financial assets and financial liabilities are 

as follows: 
   

  
At amortised 

cost 
  31.3.2023 
  AED 

 Financial assets  
 Due from a related party 100,000 

   
 Financial liabilities  
 Accruals 17,000 
 
 Fair vale measurement and disclosures 
 The management assesses the fair values of all its financial assets and financial liabilities at 

each reporting date. 
  

 The fair values of due from a related party and accruals approximate their carrying amounts 
largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments. 

  
 Financial risk management 
 Risk management objectives 
 Risk is inherent in the Company’s activities but is managed through a process of ongoing 

identification, measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. This 
process of risk management is critical to the Company’s continuing profitability. The Company’s 
risk management focusses on actively securing short to medium term cash flows by minimising 
the exposure to financial markets. 

 The primary risks to which the business is exposed which are unchanged from the previous year 
comprise credit risks, liquidity risks and market risks (including currency risks and cash flow 
interest rate risks and fair value interest rate risks). 

  
 The management of the Company reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks 

which are summarised below: 
  
 Credit risk 
 Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation 

and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. 
  
 Credit risk is managed by assessing the creditworthiness of potential customers and the 

potential for exposure to the market in which they operate, combined with regular monitoring 
and follow-up. 
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 Financial assets that potentially expose the Company to concentrations of credit risk comprise 
principally due from a related party. 

  
 The management assesses the credit risk arising from due from a related party taking into 

account their financial position, past experience and other factors. Based on the assessment 
individual risk limits are determined. 

  
 Based on the assessment, the management believes that no impairment provision is required 

under IFRS 9. 
  
 Liquidity risk 
 Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may encounter difficulty in meeting financial 

obligations due to shortage of funds. The Company’s exposure to liquidity risk arises primarily 
from mismatches of the maturities of financial assets and financial liabilities. 

  

 The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will 
always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed 
conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s   
reputation. The Company manages liquidity risk by monitoring forecast and actual cash flows 
and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. The Concern limits its 
liquidity risk by ensuring adequate arrangements with its related parties. 

  
 The table below summarises the maturities of the Company’s undiscounted financial liabilities 

at the reporting date, based on contractual payment dates and current market interest rates. 
   
  Less than 

one year 
  31.3.2023 
  AED 
 Accruals 17,000 
 Market risk 
 Market risk is the risk that the changes in market prices, such as foreign currency exchange 

rates, interest rates and prices, will affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of 
financial instrument. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control 
market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the returns. 

  
 Currency risk 
 Currency risk is the risk that the values of financial instruments will fluctuate because of 

changes in foreign exchange rates. 
  
 There are no significant currency risks as substantially all financial assets and financial liabilities 

are denominated in U.A.E. Dirhams or US Dollars to which the Dirham is fixed. 
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 Interest rate risk 
 Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate because of 

changes in market interest rates. 
  
 The Company is not exposed to any significant interest rate risks. 
  
12. COMPARATIVE INFORMATION 
 These are the first set of financial statements prepared by the management for the Company 

[Note 1(b)] and, accordingly, no comparative information is presented. 
  
13. CORPORATE TAX 
 On 9 December 2022, the UAE Ministry of Finance issued the Federal Decree-Law No. (47) of 

2022 introducing Corporate Tax, effective for financial years commencing on or after 1 June 
2023. The rate of corporate tax is 9% on the taxable income exceeding AED 375,000 and 0% for 
qualifying free zone companies on their qualifying income, subject to meeting specified 
conditions. There is no impact of this law on the financial statements of the Company for the 
year ended 31 March 2023.  Management will assess the implications of this Federal Corporate 
Tax for the Company in due course. 

 
For KAYA TRADING – SINGLE OWNER L.L.C 
 

 
 
RAJIV SURI     PIYUSH LOYA 
MANAGER     MANAGER 

   

 




































































































































































































































































